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DEPOSITION OF DAVID RIZZUTO

January 22, 2009

DAVID RIZZUTO,

having been first duly sworn, testifies as follows:
EXAMINAT ION

BY MR. SIMPSON:

Q. Sir, will you tell us your name, please, and
spell your last name for the record.

A, Certainly. My name is David Alan Rizzuto,
R-i-z-z-u-t-o.

Q. Sir, as you know, you've been sworn in and that
means that the penalty of perjury applies to the testimony
you're giving today. Do you understand that?

A. Yes, I do.

Q. The testimony you're giving has the same force
and effect as if vyou're testify before a judge and injury.
Do you understand?

A. I do.

Q. For that reason we want to have the best

testimony that you can give us today. Can you do that for

us?
A, Yes, 1 can.
Q. Any reason we can't have your best testimony?
A. No.

1/23/2008 2:59 PM
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1 Q. Fair enough. When we're done here we'll have a
2 transcript prepared that contains everything that's been
3 said on the record, and you'll have an opportunity to

4 review the transcript. It will read like a play with a
5 question and answer, and you can make changes to your

6 answers, but we have to caution you that if you make

7 changes to the answers in a substantive way, "yes" to a -
8 "no," "no" to a "yes," we could comment on that and that
9 could affect your credibility or the city of Poway's, as

10 well. Do you understand that?

11 A, Certainly.

12 Q. As you've been doing, we need to have oral

13 responses obviously those that we can hear other than head
14 nods and gestures, that kind of thing. Okay?

15 A. Yes.

16 0. Likewise, "huh-uhs" and "uh-huhs" don't

17 transcribe well, so that we don't cause Diane trouble we
18 need to make sure we say somebody intelligible. Okay?
19 A, Okay.A

20 0. As we've been doing, we need to wait for one
21 another to finish what the other is saying so that we

22 don't talk over each other. All right?

23 A, Correct.

24 Q. If you need a break at any point, let me know,

25 and we'll do that.

1/23/2009 2:59 PM
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1 A, That's fine.
2 0. From time to time we may have objections from
3 counsel, but I'm entitled to the answers if you understand

4 the question. Okay.

5 A. Yes.
6 Q. And that's unless you are instructed not to
7 answer., All right?
8 A. Of course,
9 Q. Sir, are you currently employed?
10 A, Yes, 1 am.
il Q. Where are you currently employed?
12 A, The city of Poway.
13 0. How long have you been there?
14 A, I've been with the city of Poway since June 5th’

15 of 2001.

16 Q. What is your position currently?

17 A, Currently my position is engineering inspector.
18 Q. How long have you been an engineering inspector?
15 A, Since February of 2003.

20 Q. Have your job duties remained the same since

21 February 20037

22 A, Yes, they have,

23 Q. Currently do you supervise anybody?
24 - A. No.

25 Q. Does anybody supervise you?

1/23/2009 2:59 PM
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A, Yes,

0. And who is that?

A, My supervisor is Danis Bechter.

Q. And who is Danis Bechter's supervisor?

A, That would be Frank Casteleneto.

Q. And Frank Casteleneto's supervisor is who?

A. Would be the director of our department, Bob
Manis.

Q. Sir, currently what are your job

respongibilities?

A, My job responsibilities day-to-day involve the
supervision of the construction activity associated with
private and public improvements, everything from site
grading to infrastructure associated with civil
engineering, water, sewer, storm drain, street lights,
paving, traffic signal modifications.

0. Is part of your job the enforcement of prdinances

of the city of Poway?’

A, Yes.
Q. Does that include grading ordinances?
A. Yes, it includes an understanding of the grading

ordinances and enforcing them.
Q. How many persons have the position that you hold
within the city of Poway?

A, Currently there are two others besides myself.

1/23/2009 2:59 PM
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Q. And who are the other two?
A, Chuck Littlejohn and John Tolliver.

Q. How do you guys divide up responsibility, if you

‘do?

A, Typically, it's based on workload, and probably |
more specifically we get into areas. So I am -~ you know,
to explain that, I'm signed to the what's considered the
north end of town.

Q. The area to which you're assigned, is that
something that includes the Moritz product at 14272 Jerome
Drive?

A. I do have an existing project on Jerome Drive. I
wouldn't say that I am assigned to Dr. Moritz' project.

Q. Does your geographic area include that particular
piece of property?

A. Typically it would, yes. I am responsible for
areas north of Twin Peaks Road.

Q. Typically, what triggers your involvement as to
any typical site? Is it the existence of a permit or is
it wandering around and looking for code violations?

A. No. My job does involve permitted projects.
Again, whether that's a private development or a -- as we
call them, capital improvement project of a publicly-
funded construction project. My involvement usually

begins with the assignment of a permit to me and then

1/23/2009 2:59 PM
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conducting preconstruction meetings prior to any grading
activity commencing.

And to answer the other part of your guestion, I
believe, is that my involvement in the enforcement of the
grading ordinance as it applies to potentially permits
without -- sites without permits is based on calls from
citizens or calls received by supervisors who direct me to
explore whether or not there's illegal grading activity at
a site.

Q. How about times when you have a site without a
permit as to which you've had no calls from citizens, are
there circumstances in which you exercise enforcement
authority of the city of Poway in that kind of a
situation?

A, I'm trying to think of an example, and I would
say no. No.

Q. What was your job between the time that you were
hired and February 20037

A, I was —- my specific title was engineering
technician.

Q. Where did you work before June 5, 20017

A, Bafore that I worked for two firms, South Coast
Civil Engineering and Slater Land Survey. They shared an
office space, so when I say I worked for both.

Q. What did you do before those jobs?

1/23/2009 2:59 PM
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A. Before that I resided in Buffalo, New York, and I

was a cook.

Q. Do you have any college degrees?

A, No,

Q. Any college education?.

A, I attended the University of Buffalo at New York

from the fall of 1988 through the spring of 1991.

Q. Any major course of study while you were there?

A, It was performance arts,

0. Sir, when did you first go to the property that's
involved in this case, 14272 Jerome Drive, Poway?

A. If I -- I couldn't put a specific date on it, but
my recollection is it was probably in January of 2008.

Q. Why did you go out there?

A. There was a gentleman who came in, I don't know
his name. He claimed to be a resident of Jerome Drive.
He expressed concern that there were trucks running up and
down the street that contained dirt, and he gave me a
general location of where the dirt was being brought to at
the end of Jerome Drive and wanted me to determine if --
well, if I can speak for somebody who I don't really know,
his concern was the volume of trucks going up and down a
privately maintained road and whether or not that had an
impact on the maintenance of the road, the citizens who

contribute to the maintenance of that road.

1/23/2009 2:59 PM
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My involvement from that peint, though, was to
determine whether or not this was a potential grading
violation based on the concerns he had raised.

Q. Who was that person? Sean Marsden?

A, I can say no, 1t was not Sean Marsden, unless
he's a 70-year-old-plus gentleman, but I don't think he
is. I really don't know the name of the man who came in.

Q. What did you do next?

A, I went out to the site within the —-- it was
within the hour, and when I arrived to the site, it was
Dr, Moritz' site where the trucks were - in this case a
truck was dropping off dirt. T observed that Dr. Moritz
was using a small backhoe skiploader to spread the dirt
around on his site.

I spoke with Dr. Moritz at that time. I asked
what his intentions were. We discussed the provisions of
the grading ordigance for what is considered routine
landscaping work, work that would not require a permit,
Because I only observed one truckload of dirt and no
subseguent trucks running, I couldn't tell you how much
dirt had been brought into the site at that point, whether
it exceeded or did not exceed the limitations of the
landscape ordinance, which is what we specifically. had
talked about. The area that was being graded -- I say

graded -- landscaped, was to the northwest of the horse

1/23/2009 2:59 PM 11
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" corrals. I did observe that some vegetation maybe had

been removed from the site. It looked like it had been
stripped bare, but then again, that could have been a
result of the fires, I honestly don't know, and that,
again, an undetermined amount of dirt had already been
spread out in this area.

My -- my assessment at that time was that it was
not a grading violation, but in speaking with Dr. Moritz I
cautioned him against bringing in too much dirt, of
créating vertical fills, you know, exceeding the height
limitations withiﬁ the landscape ordinance that is part of
the grading ordinance, ana I left the site.

Q. What is your understanding of the limitations of
the grading ordinances?

A, Specifically in the grading ordinance, I couldn't
give you the actual section. It's J is the alpha
assignment to it, Section J of whatever part of the
grading ordinance, but specifically that says you shall
not import more than 250 cubic yards -- when I say
"import," let me correct myself -- import or utilize
onsite materials exceeding 250 yards. You shéll not
create vertical fills greater than five feet in height at
a 3:1 slope, and you shall not create any vertical cuts or
fills greater than a foot in depth. And then probably

most significantly is that the areas being landscaped, the

1/23/2009 2:59 PM
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intent is that there will never be a structure, permitted
structure, built on them or something that would require a
building permit, habitable space.

Q. Because of compaction issues?

A. Certainly.

0. Any other distinctions between what's permissible
landscaping and what's grading?

A, Possibly the clearing of vegetation could come
into that, but, again, I didn't have the benefit of
knowing what that site looked like before the day I went
out there. So, again, my observation was that there was
fresh disturbance of soil, but what had been there before,
I couldn't tell you. So when I say that stripping or
clearing of vegetation can become an issue, that gets into
whether or not there's habitat out there that shouldn't be
removed or trees that are protected by our ordinances.

Q. Did Bill Moritz tell you that he had already been
to the city of Poway asking whether a permit was required
for the work that he envisioned? |

A. I believe —-

MS. FOSTER: Objection. I'm sorry. That calls
for hearsay.

You can answer.

THE WITNESS: Okay. That I believe was

discussed, that he said he had been in contact with the

1/23/2009 2:59 PM
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city at that point.
BY MR. SIMPSON:

Q. He told you that he'd actually been down to fhe
city?

A. I couldn't tell you his exact phrasing of it, but
that he expressed an understanding of the limitations of
the ordinance at it applied to the work he was doing.

Q. Did you issue any stop work notice or citation?

A, I did not.

Q. Why is that?

A. Again, because my opinion of the work that was
ongoing at that time was that it did not exceed the
criteria of the provisions for landscaping.

Q. You indicated in earlier testimony that the area
at which you observed the grading was to the northwest of
the corral. Do you recall that?

A. That's correct,

Q. I'm going to show you what's been previously
marked as Exhibit 75.

A, Okay.

Q. Can you describe in reference to any of the
structures that you see on Exhibit 75 where it was that
you observed the activities that you've described?

A, Would you like me to mark it or just point or --

0. Well, you can just point or describe in words

1/23/2009 2:59 PM 14
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where 1t was.

A, I would say he was working in this area right
here.

Q. Ckay. So —--

A. Again, west of the corrai,and a little bit to the
north of it.

0. S0 between the Moritz horse corral and the Moritz
swimming pool?

A, Yes.

Q. A little bit to the north of the swimming pool?

A. Yes,

Q. And a little bit to the south of the swimming
pool?

A. Yes. And this —- this area in gquestion here was
possibly cleared, but he was not working over there.

Q. And you're referring te the area to the north of
the plastic creek?

A, I am, and the reason I am specifying this area is
because of the location of this tree. I do remember this
tree kind of standing out as being alone and kind of
isolated from any other trees around it and that this area

was cleared of any vegetation.

Q. Do you know which is the Moritz property?
A. I honestly don't. I don't know the limits of his
property.

1/23/2009 2:59 PM
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Q. The tree that you just described is on the square

patch that's to the north of the plastic creek; is that

right?
A, That is correct.
Q. Pid you observe the landscaping contour grading

activity that you've described going on on that property
at that time?

A. I did not.

0. How about stockpiling of soils?

A, No. Again, the only stockpiled material was
maybe the eight to 10 cubic yards that had been dropped
off by the truck that I witnessed onsite at that time.

I would say that when I met with Dr. Moritz, at
that point he was on his piece of equipment somewhere to
the east of -- if this is a pool -- I'm guessing that's a
pool -- to the east of the pool.

Q. Where was the stockpile of dumped soil that you
saw?

A, By the entrance. There's an opening in the fence
down here, and it would have been dropped off somewhere
between where he was on the piece of equipment and over in
here. |

Q. So the fence opening is on the —-- whatever -- the
eastern end of Jerome on the northern side?

A, That's correct.

1/23/2009 2:59 PM
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MS. FOSTER: Maybe if you turn it that way, it
makes more sense.
THE WITNESS: Yeah.
BY MR. SIMPSON:
. Where -- how did you get to the site?

A, City vehicle.

0. Down Jerome or down Crocker?
A, Pown Jerome.
Q. Did you alert the Moritzes that you were coming

out to the site?

A, Prior to arriving, no.

Q. Did you get permission from the gentleman that
complained to come onto Jerome Drive?

A, No, I did not.

Q. Did you get permission from anybody that owns the
properties alongside of Jerome Drive to go down Jerome
Drive?

A. No, I did not.

0. Are you aware of whether that's a private drive?
A, I believe it's a private road, yes.
Q. Have you ever had any training from the city of

Poway about the circumstances that require the city to
obtain an inspection warrant before entering onto
somebody's property?

A, No, I have not.

1/23/2009 2:58 PM 17
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Q. Do you know whether that training has ever been
afforded to anybody within the city of Poway?

A, I do not.

Q. It's not been afforded to anybody since you've
been here, to your knowledge?

A, | Not to my knowledge, no.

Q. Are the people that you've described earlier, the
other two enforcement officers, they people that have been
here since the time you've been here, roughly 20017

A, You mean prior to that or -- well, I could give
you -- Chuck Littlejohn probably joined staff sometime in
2004, and John Tolliver has been with us for a month now.

Q. Was there -- is that a new position or was there
somebody that preceded Mr. Tolliver?

A. There was a contract inspector that the city
hired.

Q. and who was that?

A. Tom Ramirez.

Q. How close were you to the stockpile of soils that
you saw that day on the Moritz property?

A, It's quite possible I was right next to it inrmy
city vehicle. I believe I actually drove my vehicle
through the opening on the -- the fence onto the property
to speak with Mr. Moritz, Dr. Moritz.

Q. Did you notice any smell or any -- have any

1/23/2009 2:59 PM 18
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concern about the -- whether the soil was clean fill?

A, No, not that I recall.

Q. Looked like dirt?

A. Looked like dirt.

Q. Did you see other pieces of earth-moving
equipment anywhere in sight other than the one piece that
you described?

A. I don't recall, no.

Q. Did you see anybody else moving soils anywhere on
the site other than Bill Moritz?

A. No,

Q. Did you tell him that it was okay to proceed as

long as he stayed within the confines of the grading

"ordinance as you described it?

A, As it applies to landscaping, yes.

Q. And when you say "as it applies to landscaping,”
what do you mean by that?

A, To not exceed the provisions that I described
earlier, you know, not to import more than 250 cubic
yards, to create vertical f£ills and cuts greater than five
feet in height, 3:1. Information that he relayed to me in
saying that he'd discussed this with city staff prior to
this work beginning, that he understood. I believe I may
have advised him that he might want to obtain a haul route

permit just in the interest of neighbors expressing

1/23/2009 2:59 PM
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concern over the activity, that it would benefit him to
have an import permit.
Q. At some point after you left the site, did you
have a conversation with Don Sharp about this site?
A, I don't recall.
Q. pid you have a conversation with anybody within
the city of Poway about this site?
MS. FOSTER: I'm going to object that it calls
for hearsay.
You can answer.
BY MR, SIMPSON:
0. Other’than counsel.
MS. FPOSTER: Sorry.
THE WITNESS: I would say that if were not Don it
would have been Danis Bechter that I notified that I'd
been -- you know, that a citizen had come in, described
what was going on, that I went to the site and my
determination was that the activity was not exceeding any
limitations that would require the individual to get a
permit.
BY MR. SIMPSON:
Q. And what did Danis Bechter say?
A, Again, whoever I may have discussed this with at
the time, whether it was Don or Danis, I don't know. I

was probably just asked to just keep an eye on the

1/23/2009 2:58 PM
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activity.

0. Are you aware there's been an issue raised about
an ephemeral stream on the Moritz' property?

A, I am aware of that issue, yes.

Q. Is that something that you observed on the day
that you were out there?

A. No. The time that I was out there that we're
discussing, there was no activity in the stream area as
it's been described to me, you know. Again, if I can use
the --

Q. Exhibit 757

A. -~ BExhibit 75, that, to me, my understanding, is
an area down in here.

Q. And you're referring to the southeasterly corner
of the Moritz property?

A. That is correct. That is correct. And at that
time there was no work taking place over there.

0. What did the property look like over there?

A, Wet, exposed mud and dirt. That's probably a
result of being in the middle of the rainy season and, I
was guessing from soil colors, existing native materials,
you know, materials native to the site.

0. Did you observe scours in that location?

A, I don't recall.

Q. How about vegetation in that location?

1/23/2009 2:59 PM
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A, Minimal.

Q. How about siltation or sediment from other
up-gradient sources?

A, I would say no. And I say that because when I
arrived and assessed the site, there was nothing striking
about this aréa at that time. You know, my attention
wasn't called to it, oh my God, look at all the dirt
that's been placed over here or look at all the silt
accumulating and runoff.

Q. How about to the nortn of where you previou;ly
observed the stockpile, did you look up to the north to
see whether there was any ephemeral stream or water
running onto the property from the north?

A, I did not.

Q You didn't look or you didn't notice any water?
A. Neither.
Q

How many times have you been out to the Moritz

property?
A. Two other occasions.
0. When were the other times?
A. The other time would have been with Don Sharp in

the beginning of February when there was a stop work
notice issued. I believe on that occasion a call came to
Don about the site or -- I'm not sure. I can't speculate

how he got the information that work had resumed out here,

1/23/2009 2:59 PM 22
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1 that there was activity that someone was concerned about.
2 And on that occasion I just happened to drive Don to the
3 site in my city vehicle.

4 Q. Do you know where the call came from?

5 A, I don't.

6 o. Do you guys keep records of that, like dispatch

1 reports or other kinds of records?

8 A, Probably not, no.

9 0. Do you know whether that person is a property
10 owner of property on either side of Jerome Drive or on
11 Crocker Drive?

12 A, I do not.

13 0. Did you guys have an inspection warrant to come
14 out that second time?

15 A. No.

16 Q. Did you have the permission of Bill or Lori

17 Moritz to come out to their property that time?

18 A. No.

19 Q. What did you guys do when you got to the site?

20 AL On this particular occasion, I recall that we did

21 not actually enter the property. We parked at, you know,

22 in the cul-de-sac at the end of Jerome.

23 Q. North side or south side?

24 A, Closer to the north side.

25 Q. Do you know whether that is Bill Moritz'

1/23/2009 2:59 PM
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property?

A, I do not.

Q. Then what did you do?

A, On. this occasion, again, I happened to be just
driving Don. Don spoke with Dr. Moritz. My recollection
of the conversation they had -- which I don't even recall

if it was outside of the truck or, you know, through the

window of the truck -- I remember for myself that I don't
think I even exited the truck -- was that there were
concerns that the -- again, I think there may have been

calls that dirt was being moved into the site again and
that bon expressed concern to Dr. Moritz that at this
point he may have exceeded the limitations of the amount
of dirt he could bring into the site for landscaping
purposes and -~ and he was advised to contact engineering
staff at the city to further discuss what his intentions
were with the work he was doing, and he was issued a stop
work notice.

Q. bid Don tell you that that was the first tiﬁe
that he had come to the property?

A, He did not tell me that.

Q. Do you know one way or the other whether that was
his first time at the site?

A, I do not know if that was his first time. I'm

speculating that it was.

1/23/2009 2:59 PM
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Q. I'm going to show you what's been previously
marked as Exhibit 55. Do you see that in front of you?

A. Yes.

0. Is that the stop work notice that was issued on
the date that you've just described where you went out
with Don Sharp to the site?

A. Based on the date here, I'm guessing yes, this is

the one we're talking about.

Q. That's your best estimate?

A Yes, based on the time frame.

Q. Whose handwriting is.on that document?
A That is Don Sharp's.

0. I'm going to show you a bad photocopy, which is
Exhibit 56, which-is the next day. Is there any way for
you to determine whether you were there on one day or the
other by any of the notes that are on there?

i Yes, actually, I believe I could, and I say this
because my recollection is that Don requested that

Dr. Moritz speak with engineering staff, and on this one

' Sam Tadros is, you know, described as contacting Sam

Tadros with guestions and concerns as opposed to this one
which mentions Jim Lyon. And, like I say, my recollection
is that this might be a grading violation, contact
engineering staff, not planning staff, which is who Jim

Lyon works with.
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Q. So if I can put that in context with reference to
the documents, you believe that you were there on the 7th
of February with Don Sharp based on the context of what's

written on Exhibit 55 mentioning the need to contact Sam

Tadros?
A. With some certainty, yes.
Q. Whereas you don't believe it was —-- based on the

context of Exhibit 56, you weren't there the following day
on the 8th of February when it was mentioned that Mr.
Moritz ought to contact Jim Lyon; right?

A. No. Yeah, I was not here on this occasion.

Q. Okay. Do you recall -- strike that.

Did the -- did Don Sharp actually hand Bill

Moritz a stop work notice when you were out there, or are
you just guessing that were you out there-based on the
context of Exhibit 557

A. No. I recall -- again, I recall one specific
occasion of driving out there with Don that very closely
preceded my initial visit and conversation with
Dr. Moritz. To answer what I think your question, I do
not recall if this was actually given to Dr. Moritz in my
presence, though.

Q. So you might have been there at a different time?

A, No. I believe I was there when he was told to

stop, but I couldn't tell you specifically if this was

1/23/2009 2:59 PM
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handed toy Dr. Moritz on that occasion.

Q. Do you have a practice of -- as an inspection
officer of writing down what other city of Poway people
are present during such inspections?

A. On a document like this -- well, no -- yes, I do
personally. I do personally, yes.

0. You mentioned the word "preceded." Were you out
at the site by yourself before the issuance of stop work
notice Exhibit 557 |

A. Only the time as described, sometime at the end
of January.

Q. When you were out there the second time you were

out there, did you observe any trucks?

A, On that occasion, no, I do not recall any trucks.
Q. How about --
A, I do -- from reading this, I do remember there

was evidence of trucks running, you know, with dirt on the

road.
Q. That was one of the next questions.
A, Okay.
Q. Did you have evidence of trucks on the property

such as tire ruts or stockpiles of soil?
A, I don't recall.
Q. How about as to the property to the north of the

Moritz' property as shown on Exhibit 75 where the plastic
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creek ends, do you see any evidence of any trucks having
dumped loads of soill on that piece of property?

A, I don't recall.

Q. Did you have any estimate of the number of trucks
that had dumped loads of soil on the Moritz property?

A, With this visit or with my previous visit?

Q. Well, let's take them both then. On your first
visit, did you have any evidence that there was any more
than the one truck that had dumped soil?

A. There was -—- yes. There was freshly tracked soil
that was a different color than what would typically be
your native materials out there. As to an amount, no, I
couldn't tell you; because all there was was one standing
pile from the truck that had arrived just as I got there.

Q. Based on your experience, were you able to tell
or to make any estimate as to the number of loads that it
would have taken or that it actually did take to spread
the soils that you described?

B, My recollection from that visit is I felt
comfortable that Dr. Moritz had not exceeded the 250 cubic
yards at that point.

Q. As far as the second time is concerned, do you
have an estimate as to how many loads of soil had been
deposited on the property as of that time?

A, I really don't recall, no.

1/23/2009 2:59 PM 28



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

1/22/2009 Rizzuto rough

Q. How about any estimate as to the cubic yardage of
soll that had been deposited on the soil as of that time?

A. Perscnally, no, I couldn't make that assessment,

Q. Did you have any report from anybody about the
number of loads of soil that had gone down Jerome Drive as
of that point?

A. Returning to the initial complaint that was
received, again, by this gentleman whose name I don't
know, only to be described as an elderly gentleman, he
described it as trucks continually running up and down
Jerome Drive with dirt. That is ~-- what that means, I
don't know, I couldn't speculate.

Q. The second time that you were out at the site,
did you make any determination as to whether the vertical
elevation had changed by more than the amount of the
grading ordinance that permits some activity to occur on a
site without a permit?

A, My observation was -- again, this is from
recollection. My observation was that more dirt than what
was observed on my initial visit had been placed as you
come into the opening on the fence, It was spread out
probably the width of the piece of equipment that was
being used, which was the same as the first time, a small
backhoe or skiploader, and that, yes, it was probably

greater than a foot in height or change from the original

1/23/2009 2:59 PM
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elevations out there.
Q. Less than two feet?

A, Possibly.

Q. Do you know one way or another?
A, No.
Q. How about in the ephemeral stream area, did you

look in that area the second visit?

A, I did not.

Q. Did you make any determination whether any soil
had been moved into the stream area?

A, I did not.

Q. What is a stream area?
A, Well, there's different definitions of "stream
area." Obviously, you have streams that run yearlong with

a constant flow of water. You have ephemeral which are
based -—- which are wet when it rains, and you have water
that accumulates in them and runs to the natural path of
drainage.

With respect to Dr. Moritz' property, I don't
have any knowledge or opinion to offer whether or not this
is a property that contains an ephemeral stream or not.

Q. Who within the city of Poway makes those
determinations?
A, I would say that is done probably at a level of a

senior planner or city planner.
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Q. Such as Jim Lyon?

A, Correct.

Q. How about Danis Bechter?

A Might have an opinion on that, yes, based on

visual observation. But I think, to clarify, there is --
there are maps that show locations of stream areas,
watersheds, that can't always be concluded from by a
visual observation. You know, something that's dry

11 months and 15 days out of the year looks very different
when it's raining.

Q. When a pérson wants to get a grading ordinance --
strike that.

When a person wants to get a gradiﬁg permit
within the city of Poway, how do they go about that
typically?

a. The initial phase of that would be called a minor
development review in which an applicant would --
actually, let me strike that because minor development
review implies that you're going to have a structure
built.

For somebody who wanted to grade an area, whether
there's a structure there or not, so let's just remove the
structure, so I don't get into building construction at
all. So if a person just wanted to grade an area that

they knew was going to be in excess of the 250 cubic yards
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and they're going to create vertical fills 20 feet in
height and it's a pad that might be developed in the
future or not, any situation like that, they want an extra
driveway turnaround on their property, things like that,
they would come in, contact engineering staff with
specific questions, I guess, determine if it's feasible,
and if they haven't already hired a civil engineer to
prepare the plans for them, that would probably be the
next step, is getting a civil engineer to prepare grading
plans along with any hydrology studies that will indicate
how the site will be contained from runoff or not
impacting adjacent properties. That permit would be
submitted for review and approval, and depending on the
quality of the engineer citizens fetained, it can
soﬁetimes be a one- or two-plan check tﬁrnaround and
others not so great, and so.

Q. Does the city of Poway ever have circumstances in
which people come into the city asking whether they need
to have a permit where the city says no, you don't?

A. I'm sure they do.

Q. Are there any =-- is there a practice within the
city of Poway to give such persons some type of note or
writing that says indeed you do not need a permit for that
kind of activity?

A, No.

1/23/2009 2:59 PM
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Q. So it's just oral?
A, Yes.
Q. Do you know whether -- do you know who worked the

desk where such kinds of things occurred as of February
2008 time frame and January 2008 time frame for people
looking for grading permits?

A. Working the counter downstairs, you probably
would have had Sam Tadros, of course, who at the time was
the interim senior engineer. You would have had Sam
Arabzadeh.

Can't help you on the spelling with that. I'm

SOrry.
0. Is he a Persian-looking male?
A, Yes, I believe he is Persian.
Q. Thin --
A. And possibly Mark Westover was still embloyed by

the city at this time. I can't recall.

Q. The Persian man whose name I can't pronounce
again --

A, Arabzadeh.

Q. Arabzadeh, is he a thin man?

A. Yes.

Q. Was there a time after the Witch Creek fires that
the city of Poway relaxed or suspended its grading and

erosion control ordinances?

1/23/2009 2:59 PM
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A, I -— I can't answer to whether or not they
relaxed their grading ordinance and requirements. I would
say from my end, what I experience on a day-to-day basis
since the Witch Creek fires, that storm water issues, 1if
anything, have been enforced with even more concern for
runoff and siltation and discharge to the storm drain

system or adjacent properties.

Q. Since what date?
A, Since the Witch Creek fire.
Q. So there's been more rigorous enforcement rather

than less; right?

A. I would say the effort has been more
concentrated, yes.

Q. Was there ever a time when there was actually
less rigorous effort to enforce those ordinances because
of the Witch Creek fires?

A, Not to my experience, no.

Q. Did you ever hear about any governmental or
gubernatorial order to relax such storm water orders?

A. No. I'm just hoping I don't get an IOU from my
tax return this year.

Q. You and me both.

Did you observe any burned-out vegetation when
you were out at the Moritz property?

A, No.

1/23/2009 2:59 PM
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Q. Did you look around to observe any fire damage?
A, Honestly, no.
Q. Did you talk with Bill Moritz about his belietf

that he needed a fire road or fire access because of the
Witch Creek fires?

A, That very well may have been part of our
conversation on my initial wvisit, yes.

Q. What did he say about that?

MS. FOSTER: Calls for hearsay.

You can answer.

THE WITNESS: I think -- he‘had mentioned that he
and a neighbor had stayed behind during the Witch Creek
Fire to protect their properties, thaﬁ as a result of that
he felt it was necessary to provide a buffer between his
property for any potential future fire, to eliminate some
of the vegetation that was there that was, you know,
flammable,

BY MR. SIMPSON:

Q. The second time you were out at the property, did
you ever see Don Sharp touch or push Bill Moritz?

A. No, I did not.

Q. How would you describe thé demeanor of Bill
Moritz on that second time you were out there?

A. Of Dr. Moritz? He was friendly, cordial.

Q. How about Don Sharp?

1/23/2008 2:59 PM
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A. Professional.
Q. What was next time that you were out at the site?
A, The only other occasion I've had to be out

there -- and this -- this may have been described in your

documentation of a city vehicle that kind of came through
the property and left. I know that I had occasion to do
that once, but based on the date that was provided, T
couldn't tell you. But I do know that on one other
occasion, this one I'm describing now, I was asked to just
go see, probably by Don or Danis, if there was activity at
the site, if, you know, Dr. Moritz was coming applying
with the stop work order, and I took a spin through the
ends of Jerome Drive. I don't believe I entered the
property on that particular occasion, and didn't see
anything to warrant stopping so I didn't,

Q. Do you know the date?

A, I really don't. It's going to be after the 7th
of February.

Q. And on that third time that you were out at the
site, did you go down Jerome Drive and then return on

Jerome Drive?

A. Yes.

Q And you circled at the end?

A. Yes.

Q Did you receive permission to go onto Jerome
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Drive from any of the adjoining Jerome Drive property
owners”?

A, No, I did not.

0. How about from Bill Moritz; did you receive
permission from him to go onto hié property?

A, No, I did not.

Q. Did you go through the fence areas at all that
day?

A. On this occasion, I believe I did not drive onto

the property.

Q. Did you have any inspection warrant on that day?
A, No,
Q. I'm going to show you what I will mark as the

next exhibit in order, but I'm not certain of the number.
Do you have an idea of what the next number is?
MS. FOSTER: I might. I believe 86 was the last
one. Oh, I'm sorry, no, because I see an 89 here.
MR, SIMPSON: You know what --
MS. FOSTER: It looks like 89 is the last one I
have from the Means deposition.
-MR. SIMPSON: Yeah, 89 was the last one.
M3, FOSTER: So this would be 90.
{Exhibit 90 marked)
BY MR. SIMPSON:

Q. I'm going to show you what I will mark as

1/23/2009 2:59 PM
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1 Exhibit 90.

2 A, Okay. Thank you.
3 Q. Which is an e-mail dated June 4, 2008, from Bob
4 Manis to Tommy Borobia, B-o-r-o-—-b-i-a, Frank Castaleneto
5 and Patty Brindle. Do you see that?
6 A. I do.
7 Q. Did you ever get a copy of this particular
8 e-mail?
9 A, I've never seen this e-mail before today.
10 Q. Were you ever instructed to casually go by the
11 Moritz property?
12 A, No.
13 Q. bo you know what is meant by the phrase "casually

i4 go by the Moritz property"?

15 A, I don't.

16 Q. QOther than those three visits to the Moritz
17 property, have you been out there any other times?

18 A. I have not.

19 Q. What other conversations have you had with Bill
20 Moritz other than what you've described?

21 A, I don't believe we've had any other

22 conversations.

23 Q. Have you had any further involvement in

24 enforcement activities as to the Moritz property other
25 than what you've described already?

1/23/2009 2:58 PM
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A. 1 have not.

Q. Do you know what was the difference in elevation
between the surface of the eastern end of Jerome Drive and
the area of the ephemeral stream located on the
southwestern -- southeastern, rather, corner of the Moritz
property when you went out there?

A I do not.

Q Do you know what it is today?

A. I don't,

0 Does the city of Poway have a practice of sharing
its stop work orders with the Regional Water Quality
Control Board?

A, If it is a stop work notice for a violation that
is determined to be -~ yes, NPD, yes, National Pollutant
Discharge elimination system related, then, ves, they
would be sent to the Regional Water Quality Control Board.

Q. Sir, I'm going to show you what's been marked as
Exhibit 52. Have you ever seen this drawing before?

i No, I've not.

Q. You hadn't any involvement in the plans for
reconstruction of the stream?

A, I have not.

0. Let me take a little break here,.

MS. FOSTER: Okay.

THE WITNESS: Okay.

1/23/2008 2:58 PM 39
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MR. SIMPSON: Let's go off the record if we

could.
(Recess)
EXAMINATION
BY MS, FOSTER:
o. Dave, on either of the occasions where you were

at the property, did you notice any vertical cuts on the
property at that time?
A, No.

MS, FOSTER: Thanks. That's my only question.

MR. SIMPSON: I appreciate your time,

I propose that we have Mr. Rizzuto sign the
transcript under the penalty of perjury, waiving the
requirement of any notary; that he do so within 30 days of
presentation of the transcript to him; the transcript can
be mailed directly to him at the city hall here at this
address with an envelope self-addressed to me; I'll
maintain custody of the original; if for any reason the
original shall remain unsigned beyond the 30-day period, a
certified copy can be used for all purposes that the
original could be used. Okay?

MS. FOSTER: So stipulated.

(The deposition concluded at 10:02 a.m.}

* * *

1/23/2009 2:59 PM
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DECLARATION UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY

T, DAVID RIZZUTO, do hereby certify under penalty
of perjury that I have read the foregoing transcript of my
deposition taken on January 22, 2009; that I have made
such corrections as appear noted herein in ink, initialed
by me; that my testimony as contained herein, as

corrected, is true and correct.

Dated this day of 2009, at

, California.

DAVID RIZZUTO
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REPORTER'S CERTIFICATION

I, Diane M. Stockton, a Certified Shorthand
Reporter in and for the State of California, do hereby

certify:

That the foregoing witness was by me duly sworn;
that the deposition was then taken before me at the time
and place herein set forth; that the testimony and
proceedings were reported stenographically by me and later
transcribed into typewriting under my direction; that the
foregoing is a true record of the testimony and

proceedings taken at that time.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have subscribed my name

this day of ' 2009.

Diane M. Stockton, CSR No. 11085

172312009 2:59 PM
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24 where | ask for sizes of things or areas, And I'm 24 environmental scientist with the northern watershed
25  entitted to such information as you have, but | don't 25 protection unil. Again, we recrganized, | became an
10 12
1 wantvyou lo speculate or guess. 1 environmental scienlist with the southern watershed
2 | ofien explain the difference between 2 profection unit. And then a couple years ago, when |
3 speculations -- speculaling and guessing by example. As 3 accepted the job of transporiation liaison to SANDAG and
4 anexample, you can eslimate the size of the table in 4 Callrans, | joined the central waiershed protection
5 front of you here because you have some reason to 5  unil.
6  percelve its size, some personal knowledge. Bul as to 6 Q Describe for me, if you would, your job
7 the size of the table that's in my office that you've 7 responstbilities working for the RWQCB currently.
8  never seen, you have no information and that would be 8 A Currently ] am woerking on all aspects of
2 pure speculation. Do you understand the difference 9  environmental permitling for large transportation
10 between eslimates and speculation on the other hand? 10  projects included in the SANDAG and Caltrans early
1t A Yes. 11 action plan. A portion of my - I'm contracted with
12 Q  Asyou've been doing, we need lo have oral 12° SANDAG and Callrans to expedite environmental permitting
13 responses, those that we can hear rather than head neds, {13 for a number of large ransporiation projects that are
14  gestures, that kind of thing. Okay? 14 being funded by the TransNel i tax. Addillonally, when
15 A Okay. 15 there isn't contract work for me, | perform whatever
16 Q From time to time counse} might objectto a 16 walershed profection dutles are necessary as my
17 question that | ask, but you're required to give an 17 supervisor sees fit.
18  answer if you understand the question. Okay? 18 Q  Who s your supervisor?
19 A Yes. 19 A My supervisor is Chiara Clemente.
20 Q  Ifyou don't understand a question, please 20 Q  And Chiara Is G-h-t-a-r-a?
21 let me know and !'ll try my best to rephrase it in a way 21 A Yes,
22 that makes some sense or -- 22 G And is Clemente C-l-e-m-e -
23 A Okay. 23 A M-ente. Sorry.
24 Q  8ir, are you currently employed? 24 MR, SIMPSON: You got both of us?
25 A Yes. 25 THE REPORTER: {Mods head.}
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1 THE WITNESS: Sorry. 1 Q  How about orders of the regional board?
2 BY MR. SIMPSON: 2 A Yes.
3 Q Whatis her job title, if you know? 3 Q How about provisions of the basin plan for
4 A Senior environmental scientist. 4 1he San Diego region?
5 Q And to whom does she report, if you know? 5 A Yes.
6 A She would report to the branch manager of the 6 Q Isit your understanding that as an
7  waltershed protection branch, which is David Barker. 7 enforcement officer for the Regional Water Quality
8 Q Andwho s his superviser, if you know? 8  Conirol Board here in San Diego that the board itself is
9 A Hewould report to the assistant executive 9  required to conform ils conduct and orders {o the
10  officer, which is Michaa! McCann. 10  provision of the Califonia waler code?
11 Q M, small ¢, capitat C-a-n-n? 11 MR. LEON: The question is somewhat
12 A Yes. 12 ambiguous. Fm not trying to interrupt or object, but
13 Q And to whom does he repori? 13 justfo try {o get clarity as to who it is that you're
14 A He would report to the executive officer of 14  asking the question of, whether he's the enforcement
15  the reglonal board, John Robertus. 15  officer or something else is an enforcement officer and
16 Q And to whom does John Roberlus report? 16  whal that person's duty Is, as you said.
17 A |imagine he would report o the executive 17 BY MR. SIMPSON:
18  director of the slate water resources conirol board. 18 Q s it your personal understanding as an
19 MR. LEON: He actually reports to the board 19 enforcement officer for RWQCB San Diego region that the
20 itseif. 20  regional board is required to follow provisions of the
21 THE WITNESS: To the board. 21 water code?
22 BY MR. SIMPSON: 22 A Yes.
23 Q is it your understanding that he reporis to 23 Q  When did you first become aware of anylhing
24 the Regional Water Quality Confrol Beard for the San 24 having to do wilh my clients, Bill and Lor Moritz?
25  Diego region? 25 A In the month of May 2008, | was forwarded a
14 16
1 A Yes. 1 compiaint from the cily of Poway. My supervisor, Chiara
2 Q Asits execulive officer? 2 Clemente, forwarded me a complaint regarding your clieni
3 A Yes, 3 and asked that | look into it.
4 Q The typleal, if there is such a thing, 4 Q From whom did the complaint come, if you
5  cleanup and abatement order that's issued under waler 5  know?
6  code seclion 13304, are they -- describg if you would 6 A |believe it was Danis Bechier, staff person
7 the life of a typical cleanup and abalement order. 7 with the city of Poway.
8 A The life of -- could you be more - 8 Q And that's D-a-n-i-s, for Danis, and Bechter
9 QG Sure. 9 s B-s-¢c-h-t-er,
190 A --clear? 10 A |beliave so.
11 Q s part of your job duty 1o enforce water 11 Q Was the complaint in wriling?
12 code provisions? 12 A It was by e-mail.
13 A Yes. 13 Q  And we're laking not about a complaint such
14 Q What else do you do as part of your job 14 asalegal document that's filed in court, but a
15  dulies? 15 complaint as far as a concem about water code
le A Asldesciibed before, | currently am aiding 16  violation?
17  SANDAG and Caltrans In environmental permilling review |17 A Yes
18 of large transportation projects. 18 Q What did he say to you?
19 Q Bad question from me. 19 A The e-malil said that Dr. Moritz had been
20 What other pieces of legislation or 20 impacling an ephemeral stream running through his
21 regulations or orders do you enforce? 21 property without proper grading permits.
22 A We enforce the Porter-Cologne Waler Quality 22 Q Anything else?
23 Control Act, the waler code, and in regards to the 23 A There was contained in the PDF that was
24 issuance of 401, water quality cerlifications, we 24 provided, | believe, some enforcement — well, some stop
25 enforce Section 401 of the clean water act. 25  work orders from the city of Poway, a conversation memo,
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1 some photographs. To the best of my recollection, 1 Q  Did you guys have any discussions about what
2 thal's what it contained. 2 you belisved, you or Danis believed were Bill Moritz's
3 Q  Notices of violation? 3 skill levels as far as the environmental code provisions
4 A | don't recall if there was a notice of 4 are concerned?
5  violation in the original complaint provided to me. 5 A We may have, but | don' recall exact
3 Q What did you do, if anything, in response to 6  conversations.
7 the complaint that Danis Bechter had sent to you In May? 7 Q Have you ever seen a situation where, in
3 A |believe 1 contacted the city of Poway to 8 response to a request from a governmental agency for a
%  get more information about it. % restoration plan, that somebody submitted a water color
10 Q Towhom did you speak? 10 painting?
11 A Danis Bechter. 11 A Water color paintings, no.
12 Q And when you contacted him, was that via 12 Q  So this was fairly unusual?
13 e-mail or orally? 13 A Yes,
14 A 1don't recall how the first contact came, 14 Q I'mgoing to show you what { will mark as
15 Q What was your purpose for contacting him? 15  Exhibit 52. And we're starling at 52 because we've had
16 A Just to assess, get some information about 16  acouple of other depositions. And this one,
17  what was happening oul there. 17  unfortunately, | don't have a separale copy of at this
18 G Whal did he tell you? 18  point. Sowe're going to have to share.
19 A He told me that Dr. Moritz had been grading 19 Is Exhibit 52 the water color painting that
20 onhis properly. He had been issued stop work orders. 20 you discussed with Danis Bechter that you've just
21 Ibelieve we discussed a sketch or a water color 21 lestified about?
22 painling that Dr. Morilz had provided regarding how — 2z A Yes.
23 his vision of what he wanted his property to look like. 23 {Exhibit 52 marked)
24 Q Did you discuss Danis Bechier's -- whether 24  BY MR. SIMPSON:
25  Danis Bechter had a belief that Bill Moritz was 25 Q Is it your understanding that that was Bill
is 20
1 unsophisticated? 1 Moriiz's plan as far as response fo the city of Poway?
2 MR. LEON: Excuse me. !l object. Iit's 2 A Yes.
3 vague and ambiguous and could lead to a huge 3 Q Was that something that you learmed about at
4 misunderstanding about what that term means. 4 the oulset of your invelvement?
5 THE WITNESS: | don't recall. 5 A Yes.
6 BYMR. SIMPSON: é Q And that was May of 20087
7 Q Tell me about the water color sketch. What 7 A Yes.
8 did he say about that? 8 Q  What was the next thing that you did with
9 A He said that they had requested Dr. Moritz to 9 respect to this case?
10 restore the stream and provide a plan showing how he 10 A Due to the fact that there were already stop
11 would do that, and they were provided with this water 11 work orders in place, | didn't do anylhing except iry o
12 color sketch, and that, in Danis's estimation, i was 12 keep tabs on it from inilially, because | thought that
13 inadequate. 13 the slop work orders would have put a halt to anything
14 Q Did Danis suggest to you that he believed 14  that was going fo impact the stream, and that perhaps
15  ihat because when Danis asked Bilt Moritz for a planand {15  from that point we would be able to address the
16  Bill Moritz gave him a water color picture, that 16 siluaiion.
17 demonsieated that Bill Morilz was unsophisticated as far {17 Q Whatis the next date, if you know, that you
18  as environmental requirements are concerned? 18 were -~ that you did anything with respect to this case?
19 A ldon't recalt him poriraying it that way, 19 A 1read e-malls after the initial complaint
20 no. 20 was given to us from Danis Bechter staiing that work had
21 @  Did you guys have any conversation at all 21 continued, and that eveniually over Memoria! Day weekend
22 about what you guys perceived was Bill Moritz's skill 22 the stream had been completely filled in and a pipe had
23 level as far as envirenmental code provisions are 23 been Installed across the properly. | believe in
24 concerned? 24 helween that time | also asked for coples of whatever
25 A Could you repeat the question, please? 25  stop work orders, any documentation that the city of
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1 Poway had provided Dr. Moritz. 1 need to comply with it, yes,

2 Q@ Do you believe that the RWQCB has the 2 Q But what does the municipat permit require of

3 authorily fo enforce city of Poway grading ordinances? 3 cities such as the city of Poway, generally speaking?

4 MR. LEON: Calls for legal specufation. 4 A Generally speaking, it requires them to

5 THE WITNESS: No, 1don't know. 5  implement a program to address storm water pollution by

&  BY MR. SIMPSON: . 6  the implementation of BMPs, enforcement of their

7 Q You're an enforcement officer for Regional 7 municipal codes, and having the legal authority fo

8  Water Quality Control Board to enforce the power of the 8  enforce thelr own code and comply wilh the permit.

9  regional board, right? 9 Q  And, among other things, that requires of the
10 A Correct. 10 city to have grading ordinances in place that require
11 Q Have you ever enforced grading ordinances for |11 people performing grading on property to have erosion
12 any city within the San Diego region? 12 conbvol plans, correct?

13 A No. 13 A Yes.

14 Q Have you ever seen {he Regional Water Quality {14 Q  And it also requires that the city to

15  Control Beard or heard of the Regional Water Quality 15 periodically address the condition of culverts within

16  Controi Board having done that? 16  the city of Poway, right?

17 A Only in the purview of perhaps the municipal 17 A ¥'m not sure what you mean by lhat,

18  storm water permits requiring that to comply with those 18 G Whatis a culvert?

19 permits the citles have adequate ordinances to comply 19 A Aculvert is a crossing of a siream or a

20 with that municipal storm water permit. 20 structure that altows water 1o pass through it

21 Q  And the municipal storm water permit you're 21 Q  And that basically conveys storm water from

22 talking about is currently 2007 hyphen 6001? 22 one slde of a road, for example, 1o another?

23 A Yes. 23 At can convey water of any kind from one side

24 Q  And that's the order by which the regional 24 o the olher.

25  board has citles becoma co-permittees of a permit to 25 Q Andifit's plugged, then the road that the
22 24

1 plan for storm water management? 1 culvert would otherwise aliow the water to pass beneath

2 A Yes. 2 becomes a dam, correct?

3 Q  And that's the authority under which cities 3 A Potentially.

4 have to prepare items such as jurisdictional urban 4 Q Do you know whether there is a program or

5 runoff management plans terms? 5 there's a requirement of the storm water permits for

6 A Yes. 6  cities such as the city of Poway to perlodically clean

7 Q Do you know whether the city of Poway has a 7 Its culverts?

8  JURMP pertaining to the area in which my client's home 8 A I'm not sure if the municipal storm water

9 sils? 9  permit requires that or not.

10 A lknow that the city of Poway had a JURMP 10 Q Do you know if there's any other requirement
11 that incorporates the entire city within their 11 of the city of Poway to do that cleaning out of culveris
12 jurisdiction. 12 upgradient of my client’s property under the authority
13 Q Do you know whether that covers the culveris 13 of any code provision or regulation of any type?

14  and drainage swales along Crocker Road next o the 14 A I'mnotsure.

15  Rattlesnake Creek tributary thal's upgradient of my 15 Q Whatis the next thing you did with respect
16  client's property? 16  to the Moritz properiy?

17 A 1would assume so. 17 A The next thing | did was inspect the site on
18 Q And that's because it's with the jurisdiction 18  June 9th, 2008 in anticipation of altending a meeting
19 of the city of Poway? 19 with Dr, Moritz's representative and the cily of Poway
20 A Correct. 20 atthe city of Poway building, City Hall.

21 Q Soit's your understanding as an enforcement 21 Q Did you have any conversation with Bill

22 officer for the regional board that the city of Poway 22 Moritz before June 9, 20087

23 must manage storm water upgradient of my client's 23 A No.

24 property? 24 Q Did you have any communication with him via
25 A As it perlains to the municipal permit, they 25  e-mail or any other means before June 9, 20087
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1 A No. 1 Q  What else did he say?
z Q How about Lori Moritz? Did you have any 2 A Hewas concemned aboul his 90-year-old
3 conversation or communication with Lori Moritz before 3 mother, who was recovering from a broken neck, and who
4 June 8, 20087 4 liked {o take walks around the property. And he was
5 A No. 5  concemned that the pipe that Br. Moritz had Instalied
6 Q Now, at the time Bill Moritz -- litry to 6  didn't connect the dots with the stream and was
7 put this properly -- was being assisted by a fellow 7 basically o the — | believe it would be west of where
8  named Stuart Sandrock. Are you aware of that name? 8 the stream used to go, and he was concemed that
9 A Yes. ¢ discharge from that pipe could potentially — his molher
10 Q And had you had any communication with Stuart |10 could slip and re-injure herseif.
11 Sandrock before June 9, 20087 11 Q ° Did he say how his mother was injured?
12 A No. 12 A Abroken neck.
13 Q How about anybody with the Moritz's interests 13 Q Did he say how her neck got broken?
14 in mind before June 9, 20087 Had you had any 14 A No.
15  communications with them before that time? 15 Q Did he describe at alf what had been done on
16 A No, 16 the Moritz property?
17 Q  How did you get to the property on June 8, 17 A Yes.
18 20087 i8 Q  What did he say?
19 A Danis Bechter drove us, by us,  mean me and 19 A He mentioned that - he talked about the
20 Kelly Fisher of the California Department of Fish and 20 Importation of dirt onto the sile by truckload.
21 Game, drove us to Crocker Road. 21 Q  Did he say how much dirl was imported?
2z Q And then where did you go? 22 A He couldn't give us an accurate eslimation,
23 A We parked on Crocker Road, and then we went 23 but he said it was many, many {ruckicads.
24 o the adjacent properly of Sean Marsden. 24 Q Did he say that he saw the truckloads dump
25 Q OnJune 9, 2008, did you set foot on my 25  theirloads?
26 28
1 client's property? 1 A ldon'trecall,
2 A No 2 Q Did he say that some of those dump rucks
3 Q When is the first time that you did that? 3 went onto the property to the norih of my client's
4 A The first time | set foot on your client's 4 property?
5  property was for the inspection in which you invited me 5 A idon't remember him saying thal, no.
& o attend. 6 G Did he deny il?
7 Q August 29th? 7 A | don't think trucks to the client's property
8 A Yes, that sounds right. 8  north of Dr. Morilz came up in our conversation.
9 Q Did you have an inspection warrant when you 9 Q Did you observe the properiy to the north of
10 wentout to my client's property on June 9, 20087 10 my client's properly on June 9, 20087
11 A No. 11 A No. Well, | sawit. | didn't pay particular
12 Q Did Danis Bechter? 12 attenfiontoit.
13 A |don't know. 13 @ CnJune 9, 2008, did you have an
14 Q Did Kelly Fisher? 14 understanding where the property line divided between
15 A | don't know. 15  the north property and my client's property?
16 Q You guys went ontc Sean Marsden's property? (16 A lassumed It was the access road that isin
17 A Yes. 17  between them, somewhere around there.
18 Q And he's the property owner to the south? 18 Q And you're referring to an access road that
19 A To the south. 19 was an eastiwest access road on the northern edge of the
20 Q  Did you speak with Sean Marsden that day? 20 properly?
21 A Yes. 21 A Yes.
22 Q  What did he say? 22 Q  Did Sean Marsden say whether any of the soil
23 A ldon't recall the conversation completely, 23 thatwas on the Moritz property had migrated onto the
24 but the gist of it was that he was upset at the 24 Marsden property to the south?
25  aclivilies that had occurred on Dr. Moritz's property. 25 A tdon't recall him saying thal.
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1 @ Did he say he was concemed about that 1 for the United Slates Census as a data input operator
2 occurring at some point in the fulure? 2 for the census, 2000 census,
3 A ldontrecall, 3 Q And then you got a job here?
4 & From the standpoint of the RWQCB, were you as 4 A linterviewed with the regional board and got
5  an enforcement officar concemed about what youobserved { 5  ajob here.
& on the Morilz property as of June 9, 20087 6 Q  What was discussed at the June 9, 2008
7 A Yes, 7 meeting that you've festified about earlier?
8 Q  What concems did you have? 8 MR. LEON: Vague and ambiguous. Discussed
g A | had concems that the pipe had been placed 9  among who?
10 impropery and that it could potentially cause erosion 10 BY MR. SIMPSON:
11 onto Mr. Marsden's property. | had concems that a 11 Q  You can answer if you understand.
12 slream had been filfed in without the proper permits. | 12 A We discussed the situation and our
13 had concerns that this project had been conducted 13 expeclations of whaf was necessary o remedy the
14 potenlially by someone who is not a civil engineer, and 14 situation.
15  |had concems that the soil that had been imported onto is Q What did Mr. Sandrock say?
16 lhe sile was not properly compacted and that there was ié A He discussed personality conflicts with city
17 no erosion and sediment controls to preventthe movement 117 of Poway staff, that he was there to try and work
18 of sediment onto Mr. Marsden's property should a 18  towards some sort of resolution to this situation, that
19 significant rain event ocour. 19  he wanted to get facts and bring -- he basically said he
20 Q  Asof June 9, did you have any olher 20 wanted to bring everyone together and try o come to
21 concems? 21 some sort of resolution to this.
22 A [ can'tthink of any other concemns | had at 22 Q Did he say where the personality conflicts
23 that point. 23 were? Between who?
24 Q Can you discuss for me, if you would, your 24 A | believe it was with Don Sharp, an inspector
25  educalional background? 25  for the city of Poway.
30 32
1 A From where would you like me to start? 1 Q Don, D-0-n?
2 Q Somelime after high school. How about that. 2 A Yes.
3 A Okay. | received a bachelor of science in 3 Q  Between Don Sharp and who?
4 environmental science from Scnoma State University, with 4 A And Br. Monilz.
5  aconcentration in water quality. As pait of my 5 G What did he say about that?
6  bachelor of science program, | was required {o do an 6 A | don't recall he exact conversations, but
7 internship prior {o graduation, and 1 intermned at the 7 basically that there was a personality conflict between
§  North Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board for a 8  Dr. Morifz and Don Sharp.
9 pericd of approximately a year. And a bachelor of 9 @ What was the next thing that you did with
10 science is the highest level of education I've received. 10 respect 1o this matter?
11 Q What jobs did you have before coming fo the 11 A | —atihe meeting, | informed Mr. Sandrock
12 San Diego Regicnal Water Quality Conlrot Board? 12 that the regicnal board was contemplating issuing a
13 A Quite a few. 13 cleanup and abatement order, and | tried to give him a
14 Q  What jobs did you have after college and 14  [ittle background on thal, and tell him what the cleanup
15  before -- 15  and abatemeni order was and what it would most fikely
16 A After college and before coming — I'm sorry. 16  require.
17 I'msony. 17 Q  Did you explain o him the extent of the
18 Q ¥m having a hard ime finishing my questions 18 cleanup and abatement order that you were contemplating
19 because somelimes I'm not fully, well, caffeinated. | 19 al that point?
20 don't know. 20 A | explained to him that the cleanup and
21 In any event, before coming to RWQCE and 21 abatement order would require his client to remove lhe
22 after college, what jobs did you have? 22 pipe and restore the creek to its pre-impact conditions.
23 A After graduation, | moved with my wife here 23 Q  Why was it that you were contemplating a
24 to San Diego. And while awaiting an Interview with the 24 cleanup and abatement order as of June 9, 20082
25  San Diego Regional Water Quality Control Board, } worked {25 A Because that's generally the appropriate
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1 enforcement action to take in a case like this. 1 Q Inthe rainy season, April 20057
2 Q When you say "a case like this,"” what do you 2 A 1don't recalt the exact date that she was
3 mean? 3 therein 2005. |was subsequently provided photos from
4 A Anillegal filling of a waters of the stale. 4 her visit in 2005.
5 Q When you say waters of the state, what do you 5 Q  And you saw waler In one of those pholos?
6  mean by that? 6 A Yes.
7 A I mean any ground or surface or saline waters 7 Q  She provided you with three photos?
8  contained within the State of California. 8 A [ don't recall how many. One pholo. One
9 Q Isit your understanding that any ground 9  photo.
10 that's filled in is within the jurisdiction of the 10 Q  And that was a close-up showing water in the
11 regional board hers in San Diego? 11 gully?
12 A What do you mean by "any ground"”? 12 A It was a photograph taken on the northem
13 Q  Well, as | understood what your last answer 13 property looking soulh towards Dr. Morilz's property,
14 was, that you befleved -- well, strike that. Let's go 14 which showed an ephemeral stream — it showed a stream
15  back to your last answer. 15 with water flowing in it.
te {Record read) 16 Q  ¥mgoing to show you what Il mark as
i7  BY MR SIMPSON: 17 Exhibit 53. And thatis indicated on there —well, is
18 Q Isityour understanding that waters of the 18  this the photo that Kelly Fisher provided you?
19 state means ground or ground water? 13 A Yes.
20 A Ground water. 20 {Exhibit 53 marked}
21 Q So when you're talking about waters of the 21 BY MR. SIMPSON:
22  state, your understanding of that term is ground water, |22 Q Is it your understanding that this was taken
23 surface water or saline water? 23 onApril i1, 20057
24 A Correct. 24 A Yes.
25 Q  The Moritz property, when you observed it 25 Q  And is that your handwriling beneath the
34 36
1 before June 9, had you ever seen any water in there? 1 photograph?
2 A | hadn'i observed the property prior to 2 A Yes.
3 June9. 3 Q  Any understanding where {he property line is
4 Q OnJune 9, was there any water in there? 4 between my client's property and the properly fo the
5 A OnJupe 9, at the meeling, we looked over 5  north?
&  topographic maps that the Depariment of Fish and Game 6 A would assume it would be that fence, but
7 had, and we discussed the fact that Kelly Fisher had 7 {--1don'tknow for sure. '
8  been out there in 2005 and what she had observed, and 8§ Q Is it your understanding that that's an
% her observation that there were in fact walers of the 9  access road thal's within the two fencas that are shown
10 state on the property north and on Dr. Moritz's 10 in the upper portion of the photograph?
11 property. 11 A it would seem so, yes.
12 Q OnJune 9, did you observe any water on the iz QG Do you have an understanding as io whether
13 Moritz property? 13 this is my client's property shown in the background of
14 A No. 14  this photograph?
15 Q Have you ever personally observed water on 15 A Only by the fact that that is what Kelly
16  the Morilz property? 16  Fisher told me, and that is what the caption of the
17 A Personally? 17  pholo she provided me says.
18 Q Yes. 18 Q  Youdon't have any firsthand knowledge of
19 A No. 19 what's depicted in this photograph, right?
20 Q  The information about water having been on 20 A idon't understand.
21 the Moritz property came from a discussion that you had 21 Q  Youweren't there when this photo was taken?
22 with Kelly Fisher, right? 22 A No, | was not.
23 A Yes, 23 Q  You don’'t know for sure that this is my
24 Q  And that was from her visit in 2005, right? 24 client's property, right?
25 A Corect. 25 A No. |can only assume that Kelly Fisher was
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1 telling me the truth, 1 Q  De he ever describe to you the condition of
2 Q Sovyou're relying on her telling you the 2 the ephemeral stream after the Wilch Creek fires and
3 truth as far as this being the Moritz property? 3 after the winter storms of 2007/20087
4 A Yes. 4 A No.
5 Q Do you have any understanding as to how much 5 Q  Did you ever have any understanding that he
6  water must fall in order for the ephemeral stream that &  perormed work on his property as a consequenca of the
7 crosses my client’s property to flow? T Witch Creek fires and the winter storms of 2007720087
8 A No. 8 A No.
9 Q  Any idea what my client's property looked ] Q  Sir, I'm going to hand you what 've marked
10 like in 20077 16 as Exhibit 55. And Exhibit 55 is a stop work notice
11 A No. 11 from the city of Poway dated February 7, 2008. Do you
iz Q Anyidea what my client's property looked 12 seethat?
13 like after the Witch Creek fires and after winter rains 13 A Yes.
14 but before my client did any work on his properly In 14 {Exhibit 55 marked)
15  February of 20087 15 BYMR. SIMPSON;
16 A Only pictures | saw on sharekids.com of the 16 Q s this the stop work notice or one of the
17 2007 fires, which didn't really provide photos that | 17 stop work notices about which you testified earlier?
18 could see that showed the creek. 18 MR. SIMPSON: Off the record.
19 Q When did you first observe those photographs? 19 {Off the record)
20 A ldon't remember the first lime 1 looked at 20 BYMR. SIMPSON:
21 sharekids.com, but | know that — 1 believe it was after 21 Q  Sir, do you recognize Exhibit 55 as one of
22  correspondence | received from Stuart Sandrock. And| |22 the stop work notices {hat the city of Poway sent to
23 wenl on the site just to see what it was aboul. 23 you?
24 Q I'mgoing to show you a group exhibit of 24 A Yes.
25  three pages of photographs. Yl mark that as 25 Q The criticism here, is it your understanding
38 40
1 Exhibit 54. Are those the photographs that you observed 1 that it was importing of fill without a haul permit?
2 on the share kids web site? 2 A Yes.
3 A Yes. 3 Q  And it mentions on here contact Sam Tadros,
91 {Exhibit 54 marked) 4 Do you see that?
5 BYMR. SIMPSON: 5 A Yes,
6 Q  Are any of the photographs in Exhibit 54 & Q  Did you ever contact Sam Tadros?
7 photographs that depict the ephemeral stream? 7 A 1have not contacted Sam Tadros.
8 A can'treally see the stream in any of these 8 Q Have you ever had any communication at all
9 photos, no. ¢  with Sam Tadros?
i0 Q Did you ever talk to Dr. Moritz about what 10 A One-on-one communicatien, no. I'm not even
11 happened to his property after the Wilch Creek fire? 11 sure if he was at the meeting on June 9th. He may have
12 A | have never spoken to Dr. Moritz personally. 12 been.
13 Q Have you ever spoken to Lori Moritz? 13 Q Have you had any communications with Bill
14 A Yes. 14 Moriz about his communications with Sam Tadros? That's
15 Q When did you speak with her? 15 T-a-d-r-o-s, by the way.
16 A | spoke wilh her on the second inspection in 16 A | have read correspondence from Mr. Sandrock
17 August. 17  conceming contacts. 1 mean, | remember Sam Tadros's
18 Q  August 28, 20087 18  name being in there.
19 A Correck. 19 Q Have you ever heard from any source that Bill
20 Q Other than that, have you spoken to either 20 Moritz understood that he had Sam Tadros's permission to
21 Lorior Dr. Moritz? 21 proceed notwithstanding the stop work notice of
22 A Spoken, no. 22 Febrary 7, 20087
23 Q You've communicated with Dr. Moritz in 23 A | have read that in Dr. Moritz's -- or his
24 writing? 24 representative’s comespondence.
25 A Viae-malil, yes. 25 Q Did you ever ask him about that or pursue
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1 that futher? 1 such away as to lead you to believe that Biil Moritz
2 A Dr. Moritz? 2 believed he had the authority of Jim Lyon to proceed
3 Q Dr. Moritz's belief that he had Sam Tadros's 3 with work that he was performing at this properly?
4  permission {o do the work. 4 A | think he may have wrote that or his
5 A No, | haver't spoken with him regarding that. 5 representalive wrote that in communications that they
6 Q Why not? 6  provided,
7 A 1don't know. 7 Q When did you hear that?
8 Q  Sir, I'm going to hand you what I'm afraid is 8 A Stuart Sandrock provided me a leiler and
%  abad copy, which is another stop work order. It's 9 Dr. Moriiz provided me comespondence. And later on |
1¢  golng to be marked as Exhibit 56. And although it's 10 received from my assistant executive officer, a letter
11  hard to read, it appears io be dated February 8, 2008, 11 that | believe to be written by Lori Moritz, And it
12 Do you see that? 12 discussed communications between the city of Poway and
13 A Yes. 13 Dr. Moritz and his understanding of it.
14 {Exhibit 56 marked) 14 Q Those communications that you've just
15 BY MR. SIMPSON: 15  described, were they after issuance of the cleanup and
16 Q s this another of the two stop work notices 16  abaternent order?
17  that you testifled about having received? 17 A 1would believe they were before issuance of
18 A Yes. 18 the cleanup and abatement order.
19 Q  What is your understanding of the concern of 19 Q Do you know one way or another?
20 the city of Poway as expressed in this stop work notice? (20 A Pwould say before.
21 A That grading an ephemeral stream is not 21 Q  Had you had e-mailed communications with my
22 allowed, and that all grading and import is to stop 22 client before the June 9, 2008 meeting?
23 immediately. 23 A No.
24 Q  Now, this notice was issued by Don Sharp. Do |24 Q  Any communications at all with my clients or
25  you see that? 25 ftheir representatives before June 9, 20087
42 44
1 A Yes. 1 A No. No.
2 Q And the name in {he middle of the page is Jim 2 Q Now, as of June 9, 2008, you already were
3 Lyon and has a phone number there, Lyonis L-y-0-n. Do 3 planning to prepare a cleanup and abatement order and
4 yousee lhat? 4 knew the contents of what you were planning to putin
5 A Yes. 5  the cleanup and abatement order, correct?
6 Q Did you ever speak with Jim Lyon about this 6 MR. LEON: Objection. That calls -- that
7 stop work nolice? 7 fails to lay a foundation, and assuming facts not in
8 A No. 8  evidence. Mischaracterizes the witaess's testimony.
9 Q Did you ever speak wilh Jim Lyon at all about 9 MR. SIMPSON: Must be a good one.
10 the work that had been performed at my clienl's 10 MR. LEON: Mustbe. You can go ahead and
11 properiy? 11 answer.
12 A I'm trying to remember whether or not 12 BY MR. SIMPSON:
13 Mr. Lyon attended the second August 29th meeting and | 13 Q You can answer if you can,
14  may have spoke to him there. Regarding this Initial 14 A Could you repeat the question again?
15  stop work order, no, 15 Q 1don'tthink | could spit that one out
16 Q  So it might have been one of the people that 16  twice.
17 you talked wilh at the meeling. Bul as far as this stop 17 As of June 9, 2008, you already knew what you
18  work order is specifically, you've not spoken with him, 18 were planning to put into a proposed cleanup and
19 correct? 19 abatement order, correct?
20 A Correct. 20 A | knew that - let me back up a minute and
21 Q  Did you ever speak with or communicate with 21 saythat
22 Bilt Morilz about conversations Bill Moritz had had with 22 MR. LEON: Just answer the question. Ckay?
23 Jim Lyon? 23 THE WITNESS: Ckay.
24 A No. 24 MR. LECN: Don't -
25 Q Did Bifl Moritz ever communicate with you in 25 THE WITNESS: | was not —~ | hadn’t any




Christopher Means January 16, 2009
45 47
1 planned course of action prior to the June Sth meeting. 1 board would not need to step in.
2 Acleanup and abatement order was an option that could 2 Q When was it that you determined that the
3 be pursued, but | hadn't made any positive determination 3 regional hoard would need to step in?
4 {hat that's the way | was going until | met with 4 A After meeting with Mr. Sandrock and reading
5  Mr. Sandrock and got more information, basically. %  his correspondence.
6  BYMR. SIMPSON: 6 Q  Did you find him to be polarizing?
7 Q  When was It that you determined that you 7 MR. LEON: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
8 ought to recommend — well, strike that. g8  BYMR. SIMPSON:
9 During the typical cleanup and abatement 9 Q Difficult?
10 order process, do you make a recommendation to your 10 A No, | didn't find Mr. Sandrock to be
11 supervisor who makes the recommendation up the chainof |11 difficull. { found him to be a distraction.
12 command to ullimately the executive officer that a 12 Q What do you mean by that?
13 gleanup and abatement order should issue? 13 A | had never had to attend a meeting with a
14 A First, | discussed it with my supervisor. 14  representative of a discharger and have undercover
15  And because this situation had occurred prior in Poway, 15  police officers in attendance before.
16  we determined that in order fo be consistent, we would 16 Q Were there undercover police officers in
17  issue a cleanup and abatement order. And then | began 17 attendance?
18  drafting the cleanup and abatement order. | also 18 A Tothe best of my knowledge, there may have
19 consulted Mark Alpert of the — who was at that ime the 19  been, yes.
20  supenvisor of the compliance assurance unit, basically 20 Q Do you know who that was?
21 our enforcement unil, 21 A No, | don't know who it was.
22 Q Soyou made a decision based on what other 22 Q Do you know whether they were acting on
23 siluations had occurred in the city of Poway? 23 behalf of Mr. Sandrock or on behalf of the Moritzes?
24 A There had been prior occurrences of private 24 A The undercover police officers?
25  residents filling in streams on their property without 25 Q Yeah.
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1 the appropriate permits. 1 A No. They were there at the request of the
2 Q Infact, there Is e-mail exchanges in the 2 cily of Poway.
3 fite between RWQUB personnel that we have another 3 Q Do you know why they were there?
4 situation, right? 4 A Because Mr. Sandrock was a convicted felon.
5 A [ don’t know what -- I'd have to see the S Q  Was it your understanding that he was acling
6  e-mails you're referring to. 6 as an attorney at that point?
7 Q  After receiving the stop work notice that is 7 A It was my understanding lhat he was acting as
8  Exhibit 56, did you make any effort to contact Jim Lyon 8  arepresentalive of Dr. Meritz. He made nole when he
9  aboutit? 9  came in that he was a retired attorney, rial altorney.
10 A No. 190 Q 1'm going to hand you what I've marked as
11 Q  Whynot? 11 Exhibit 57. You mentioned earlier something about a
12 MR. LEON: Objection. It's argumentative. 12 conversation confirmer, | believe. Is this one of the
13 Assumes facts nol in evidence. Fails tolaya 13 conversation confirmer documents that you received from
14  foundalion. Assumes that the client believed he had a 14  Danis Bechter?
15 responsibility under some protocot to speak to 15 A Yes.
16  Mr, Lyons. 16 Q  And this is dated March 21, 20087
17 BY MR. SIMPSON; 17 A Yes.
18 Q You can answer. 18 (Exhibit 57 marked})
19 MR. LEON: You can answer, i3 BY MR. SIMPSON:
20 THE WITNESS: Could you repeat the question? [20 Q Is it your understanding that Bill Morilz was
21 BY MR, SIMPSON: 21 asked to place BMPs at the toe of his fili?
22 Q Whynot? 22 A That's what this document states.
23 A Because at the time | was hoping that this 23 Q Do you know whether he did that?
24 was a situation that could be resolved strictly betwaen 24 A | believe he may have put a silt fence there.
25  the city of Poway and Dr. Moritz, and that the regional 25 Q Did you observe a silt fence when you were
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1 there -- 1 QG  What's the difference?
2 A Yes, 2 A Erosion control BMPs are any sort of best
3 Q --onJune 9, 20087 3 management practice which keeps soit in place during a
4 A Twould have to see my inspection report to 4  precipitation event. Sediment controi BMPs are best
5  refresh my memaory, but | helieve there was a silt fence 5  management praclices that caplure sediment after it's
&  there af the time, 6  become mobile dusing a precipitation event,
7 Q  8ir, 'm going 1o hand you what 've marked 7 Q What sedimentation conlrols did you see on
8  as Exhibit 58, consisting of two pages. That is your 8  the properly in August?
3 supporting document No. 5 from your recent prosecutoriak 9 A | saw three straw wallles, | saw a siit
10 submiltal. s that your inspection report that you've 10 fence. Those were the selllement conlrol BMPs.
11 just mentioned? 11 Q  When you were there in Augusl, at thal point
12 A it's not the complete inspection report. it 12 acleanup and abatement order had already issued, right?
13 s the first two pages of my Inspection repori. i3 A Comrect,
14 Q  What pages are missing? 14 Q  And you recommended the addilion of some
15 A The photographic -- let's see. A location 15  additional straw wallles and staking through the straw
16  map, wo photographs that | obtained off of the 16  watlles ralher than on the sides of them, right?
17  internet, aerial photographs off the internet of the 17 A I made note that the siraw waltfes had been
18  Morifz properiy, a picture provided, which is now 18  installed improperly and provided suggesiions on how
19  Exhibit 53, and | believe a photo of the finished pipe 19  they could be appropriately installed.
20 ihal was provided by Danis Bechter, 20 Q  And Callrans guides are one of the methods by
21 (Exhibit 58 marked) 21 which such siraw watlles can properly be installed,
22 BYMR. SIMPSON: 22 right?
23 Q A closeup of the northern end of the pipe is 23 A Calirans BMP manual is one. The CASQA storm
24 the last photograph you've just mentioned? 24 water manual BMP is another.
25 A It's one of lhe first photos 1 was provided 25 Q Can you provide the couri reporter that
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1 nthe initial -- by Danis Bechter, after the pipe had 1 acronym?
2 been installed. 2 A CASQAIs C-A-S-Q-A. | can't — California —
3 Q  Sir, 'm going to hand you what I've marked 3 lcan'tremember.
4 as Exhibit 59. Can you tell me whether that is your 4 Q The acronym is fine. Sorry.
5  complete inspection report from the June 9, 2008 5 Did you ever go back to determine whether the
6  inspection? 6  sediment controls were changed following that
7 A Yes. 7 August 28th, 2008 meeting?
8 {Exhibit 59 marked) 8 A No.
9  BY MR. SIMPSON: 9 Q Did you hear from any source whether they
10 Q Did you observe a silt fence as of your 10 were?
i1 June 9, 2008 inspection? 11 A |don't recalt.
12 A Yes, | did. 12 (Recess taken)
13 Q What about other sedimentary erosion control 13 BY MR. SIMPSON:
14  BMPs? Did you see any? 14 Q Sir, 'm going to hand you Exhibit 80. s
15 A No. 15  that the proposed or tentative cleanup and abatement
16 Q How many times have you been out to observe }16  order, R-8-2008-01527
17 my client's property? 17 A Yes.
18 A Twice. 18 {Exhibit 60 marked)
19 Q  The other time was August 29, 20087 19 BYMR. SIMPSON:
20 A Correcl. 20 Q Did you draft this?
21 Q When you were out there in August of 2008, 21 A Yes.
22 did you see erosion control BMPs? 22 Q  Andis this reviewed by Ms. Clemente?
23 A No. 23 A  Yes.
24 Q Did you see sediment control BMPs? 24 Q  Andit's been reviewed by the executive
25 A Yes. 25  officer as well?
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1 A Wwas not reviewed by Ms. Clemente because 1 A Yes.

2 she was out sick at the time this was drafted. 2 Q That's one of the requirements of this

3 Q  Who else has reviewed this within the 3 tentalive cleanup and abatement order, right?

4  regional board before making this part of the 4 A Yes.

5  February 11, 2009 hearing submittals? 5 G Likewise, another requirement is restoring

& A | believe Jeremy Haus, the acling supervisor 6 elevations of {he stream channel bottom and the banks

7  of the compliance and assurance unit fook a look at it, 7 and floodplain to pre-discharge conditions, correct?

8  and David Barker, and Mike McCann. 8 A Yes.

9 Q Tuming back to the requiremenis of the 9 Q  And that specifies the design of the stream
10 proposed ¢leanup and abatement order, | think it's 10 must meet the preexisting design from back in 2005,
11 Page 4, underneath the language it is hereby ordered, do |11  right?

12 yousee thai? 12 A Notexactly, no.

13 A Yes. 13 Q 5o this has nothing to do with the design of

14 Q Is this where lhe regional board prescribes 14  the stream?

15  whatis going fo be ordered if this cleanup and 15 A Could you rephrase the question?

16  abatement orderissues? i6 Q Okay. Well, lef's look at Item No. 3C here.

17 A These are the direclives of {he cleanup and 17 1t says realigning the stream channe! o its

18  abatement order, 18  pre-discharge location. One of the things in the

19 Q Those are directives numbers 1 through 5, 19 tentative cleanup and abatement order here that the

20 comeci? 20 regional board would require is realigning of the stream

21 A Yes. 21 channel to the pre-discharge location, right?

22 Q  Now, No. 3 has a number of subcalegories, A 22 A Right.

23 through F. Do you see those? 23 Q Soit's specifying the design of the restored

24 A Yes. 24 stream o require it to nof only be aligned where it was

25 G Are those the specific measures that you 25  before, but also for it to have the same elevations that
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1 propose that the regional board adopt and require of the 1 jtdid before, right?

2 Moritzes? 2 A As proposed in the 2008 — Seplember 18, 2008

3 A Those are the activities required to restore 3 amended slream restoration pfan.

4 the stream to its pre-project condition. 4 Q Where does it say lhe September 2008 amended

5 Q  When you say pre-project condition, are you 5  sfream restoration plan?

6 referring to the condition that it existed in 20057 Or 6 A Indirective 2,

7 In the condition it existed after the Witch Creek fires, 7 Q Ckay. Thal's a separate direclive from

8  after the winter storms, and befere he did any woik in 8  No. 3, correct?

9  February 20087 9 A Cormrect.

10 A It would generally have to be 2005, because [ 10 Q Inliem No. 3, it says independently of ltem

11  don't believe any topegraphic information is available 11 No. 2 that the order requirements of the Moritzes would
12 for 2007. So as of 2005 as it said in the amended i2  be, among other things, to realign the stream to ils

13 stream restoration plan that was provided by Dr, Moritz. {13 pre-discharge location, and also to restore the

14 Q So you beliave that, and by putting this ltem 14 elevation of the channel bottom, banks and floodplain to
1%  No. 3 inthe cleanup and abatement order, fentative 15  pre-discharge locaticns, comect?

16  cleanup and abatement order, you believe that Bill 16 A Comect.

17  Moritz is going to have to restore the stream to the 17 Q Soit's not just incorporating the stream

18  same slevations that it existed in 20057 18 resloration plan that was proposed in September 2008,
19 A I'd have to look at the restoration plan 12 butit's going beyond that and specifying specifically

20 again. He needs to do it as it was proposed. It won't 20 inltem No. 3 the design of the siream, right?

21 be exactly, but it will be somewhere close. 21 MR. LEON: Object, because there hasn't been
22 Q Well, item No. 3A, for example, says the 22 afoundation faid with respect to the nature of the

23 first thing, paraphrasing, he needs to remove the sand, 23 requirements under the 2008 amended stream restoration
24 silt, clay, rock and other earthen materials discharged 24 plan and the distinclions that that might have wilh the
25  tothe waters of the state. Do you see that? 25  requirements set forlh in No. 3. And it's argumentative
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1  and assumes facts that are not in evidence. 1 @  I'm going to hand you what F've marked as
2 BY MR. SIMPSON: 2 Exhibit 61 and ask you if you can tell me what that is.
3 Q  You can answer, 3 Let me ask it this way. Do you recognize this as - a
4 A The intent of directive 3 is to restore the 4 figure as part of the sfream restoration plan that was a
5  stream {o its pre-project impacts, pre-project 5  proposal for sediment control?
6  configurafion, 6 A It iooks simifar to that. | can't say for
7 Q  In olher words, part of the RWQCSB, if it 7 sure that this, with this writing on here, if it is a
8  adopts this, is telling the Moritzes how to restore the 8  part of the plan. {d have to see the final stream bed
9  stream by specifying the design. And that design is the 9 plan again to confirm that. It does look familiar.
10  preexisling condition, righi? 10 (Exhibit 61 marked)
11 A Not exactly, no, 11 BY MR. SIMPSON:
12 Q Howdoes it differ? 12 Q Do you know whether the fiber rolls that were
13 A We are requesting that the stream be 13 identified in this particular exhibit, 61, were ever
14  restored, and then elements of the restoralion that are 14 installed at the site?
15  necessary to have that happen, o have the stream 15 A ldon't know.
16  restored lo ils pre-project configuration are here. How 16 Q Do you know whether they were installed --
17  that's fo be done — we're not presciibing how it's lo 17 well, strike that.
18  be done. We're prescribing what's required to restore 18 The regional board approved the stream
19  the creek. 19  restoration plan that Dr. Moritz submitted in September
20 Q When you're saying you're not prescribing how 20 2008, right?
21 i's to be done, you mean that he can use bulldozers 21 A We reviewed it and we found it to be
22 versus shovels? Thal's his choice? Whatdoyoumean? |22  acceptable,
23 A I mean, yes, the way he goes about it is up 23 Q Is that different from approving it?
24 o him, 24 A Pwould think so, yes.
25 Q Butthe design must be the same design as it 25 Q  What's the difference?
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1 existed before he did any work, comrect? 1 A Approval to me means that we are giving a
2 A That's the point, yes. 2 stamp saying absolutely, this is the way to do it
3 Q For example, he must remove the drainage 3 Accepfance means we've looked at it and it will meet the
4  pipe, right? 4 goals that we had inlended.
5 A Yes, 5 Q  What were the goals that the RWQCS intended?
6 Q Do you have any understanding whether that 6 A To restore the creek as closely as possible
7 drainage pipe still is in the ground? 7 towhat was lhere before and put back the functions and
8 A | beligve portions of it are still in the 8  the hydrological and ecological functions that the
%  ground. 9  siream had prior {o.
10 Q Do you know whether the portions that are 10 Q Is it your understanding -- I'm sorry. |
11 siillin the ground are in the fonmer ephemeral stream 11 didn't mean to walk on your answer.
12 bed? : 1z A I'mdone.
13 A I'munable to see underground, so | can't 13 Q Was it your understanding that there was
14 tell you exactly where they are. But from diagrams 14 going to be a remedy at the upgradient end of the pipe
15  provided by Dr. Moritzs consultants in the amended i5  to preventit from conveying storm water from the
16  stream resteration plan, | would assume that good 16  northern porticn of the property to the southemn?
17 porlions of he pipe are placed within the stream bed. 17 A | don't quite understand your question.
ig Q Do you know what portions have been removed? 18 Q  On Exhibil 81, it mentions at the top "plug
19 A No 19 entrance to culvert wilh Porlland cement ¢oncrete.” Do
29 Q Do you know whether portions have been 20 yousee that?
21 removed? 21 A Yes.
22 A 1believe that during the city of Poway's 22 Q Was pan of the concern of the regional board
23 work on the project, from what | understand, some or a 23 the functioning of that particular pipe, in an effort to
24 portion of the pipe was encountered when they were doing 24 disable it?
25  their work, and that was removed. 25 A | believe that during our August 29th




Christopher Means January 16, 2009
61 63
1 meeting, yes, | did -- | did show -- express some 1 order that was proposed?
2 concern about plugging that pipe and utilizing the next 2 A No.
3 door neighbor's property as a sedimentation basin, yes. 3 Q@  How about in the preparation of the previous
4 Q  And there was also discussion about a 4  cleanup and abatement order?
5  sedimentation basin on the southern end of the pipe? 5 A No.
6 A We did discuss that. 6 Q Do you know whether the regional board, in
7 Q Do you know whether the city of Poway 7 sefting its water quality objectives, took into account
8  approved work on either end of that pipe so that Bill 8 any economic considerations?
9 Moritz could proceed with the construction? 9 MR. LEON: I'm going to object to that as
10 A [ don't know. 10 irrelevant and not fikely to lead fo any relevant
11 Q Do you know what steps are necessaryinorder {11  information. it doesn't have anything to do with the
12 for a homeowner such as Bill Moritz fo obtain approval 12 case,
13 to do that type of work? 13 THE WITNESS: And | don't understand your
14 A Are we talking specifically about plugging 14  question,
15  the culveri? 15  BY MR, SIMPSON:;
16 Q Yes, 16 Q  What are the water quality objectives for
17 A Well, | would assume that Dr. Moritz would 17 this particular area?
18 need to get permission from his next door neighbor, 18 A The water — I'm — the water quality
1% since he would be -- since he built that portion on his 19  objectives for — that would be contained in the basin
20 neighbor's property, and that he was intending touse — 120 pian. And off the top of my head, | can't provide you
21 by plugging the culvert at the northern end of the 21 with every water quality objeciive necessary.
22 property, he was infending to allow his neighbor's 22 Q Do water qualily objectives have anything to
23 property o act as a sedimentation basin. 23 dowith Bill Moritz's cleanup and abatement order that
24 And now do you want me fo address the silt 24 you're proposing here?
25 fence at the bottom here? 25 A Mr. Moritz's actions affected the beneficial
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1 Q No. 1 uses of the water, it affecled the hydrological and
2 A No? 2 ecological function of the stream, and in that way, yes,
3 Q Do you know how much the stream restoration 3 Mr. Moritz's actions have removed the beneficial uses
4 plan cost? 4 throughout that stretch of his creek that the basin plan
5 A Tknow -- not for a fact, no, 5  provides for.
6 Q Do you know how much permitting for 6 Q Now, it's acceptable, is it not, for
7 performing work described in the stream restoration plan 7 individuals to change the quality of water to some
8  would cost? 8  degree even though it might affect beneficial uses?
9 A | know how much -- well, if a 401 9 MR. LEON: Calls for a legal conclusion to
10 certification was hecessary to do the restoration work, 10 some extent. It's argumentative and perhaps asks the
11 that would cost $500. I'm unaware of city of Poway fees 111  witness to speculale.
12 for gelting the grading permit that would be required to 12 THE WITNESS: Could you repeat the question,
13 do the restoration work, and I'm not exactly sure how 13 please?
14 much fish and game Is charging right now for a stream 14  BY MR. SIMPSON:
15  bhed alteration agreement. 15 G it's possible for people such as Dr. Moritz
16 Q How about the engineering costs in order to 16  tochange the quality of water without unreasonably
17 prepare the plans that would be acceptable for the city 17 affecting beneficial uses, right?
18 of Poway? Anyidea what that would cost? 18 A 1don't understand the question.
19 A No, | don't. 19 Q Do you know what the quality of water is,
20 Q Did economic considerations play any part in 20 storm waler is, as it enters onto Bill Moritz's property
21 the analysis of the cleanup and abatement order that 21 inarain event?
22 you're proposing? 22 A No.
23 A No, 23 Q Never measured it?
24 Q Did you ever consider economic considerations 24 A No, | have not.
25  of the Moritzes in preparing the cleanup and abatement 25 Q Do you know whether the regional board has
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1 ever done any inspection or test by which it could 1 Q The historical photographs you're talking
z  determine the quality of the water as it enters onto 2 about are four in number?
3 Bill Moritz's property during a rain event? 3 A Yve looked at a lot of historical photos, on
4 A | don'tknow. 4  the web and that I've purchased from -- or lhe state has
5 Q How about as it -- as water comes off of the 5  purchased from historicaerials.com. | didn't purchase
& property? Has the regional board ever done any &  allthe ones | looked at.
7 inspection or test to determine the quality of water as 1 Q  Are those part of the record?
8 it exits the Moritz property? 8 A Those are part one of — the photos |
g A Only that ] have seen piclures of the 9  purchased is part of the evidence package | provided to
10 property by the city of Poway putting in their interim 10 you. I can'l tell you what supporting document it is.
11  BMPs. | have seen it during a rain event, a picture of 11 It's supporting document one.
12 it 12 Q And one of those is an aerial photograph from
13 Q  What did you conclude based upon the picture? |13 1964, comecl?
14 A That water was going across his property, 14 A Corecl. |also purchased an aeral photo
15  there was some sediment in it from upstream. 15  from 20603. 1have aerial photos provided by the city of
16 Q  Did you make any determination whether the 16  Poway during 2005, and aerial photos that were provided
17  water quality was degraded as it exited his property? 17 inthe first inspection report that | got off of a
i8 A | don't have enough information to make that 18 mapping web site.
19 determination. 19 Q  QGelling back to Exhibit 60, the cleanup and
20 Q Because you don't have any inspection or 20 abatement order thal is proposed, paragraph No. 2, maybe
21 tesis, right? 21 you can lake a moment and ook at that briefly. I'm not
22 A To my knowledge, there - | have conducted no 22 going to go through the whele thing, but a couple
23 tests or investigations as to constituents contained in 23 senlences.
24 slorm water crossing Dr. Moritz's property. 24 MR. LEON: You're talking about finding No.
25 Q Do you believe that the Moritz properly, as 25 2, Counsel?
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1 it existed in August 2008, threatened to degrade water 1 MR. SIMPSON: Well, it's paragraph No. 2,
2 quality? 2 but - it doesn't say finding No. 2,
3 A 1don'tknow. 3 MR. LEON: Page 17
4 Q  How about as his property exists today? Do 4 THE WITNESS: Yeah.
5  you believe that his property as it exists today 5 MR. SIMPSON: Yeah. Page 1.
6 threatens water quality? 6 THE WITNESS: Yes. Okay.
7 A Potentially. T BYMR.SIMPSON:
8 @  How? 8 Q It begins there on or about February 7,
9 A The fili that's been placed in the stream bed 9  Dr. Bill Moritz discharged waste. Do you see that?
19  has altered the hydrology of that ephemeral drainage, {10 A Yes.
11 it's removed any ecologicat benefit that the prior 11 Q  The conclusion or the finding that's made
12 ephemeral drainage may have conlained. 12 {here, is that based on communications from the city of
i3 Q When you say ecological benefit, whatdoyou {13 Poway?
14 mean? 14 A I's based on communications from the city of
15 A Landscape connectivity, connecting upper - 15  Poway, conversation we had with Sean Marsden the first
16  you basically removed the ability of the ephemeral 16 time we were there, | believe. And If my memory serves
17  drainage to transport sediment, transport nutrients, 17 me correctly, that is what Stuart Sandrock told us at
18  remove — pollutant removal. It's hard to say if the 18 the first June 9th meeling.
19  ephemeral drainage provided any cover for animals or |19 Q Do you know whether he said that?
29 birds, because I'm not able to tell you exactly what the {29 A Notfor sure. | seemto recallit. | seem
21 creek looked like prior to him filling it in. ! can 21 to recall requesting that information ~ exact
22 only go by historical photos that I've seen. 22 information from him, but { don't know if { ever got the
23 Q Do you have — and the historical photographs {23 answer back.
24 you're talking about are four in number? 24 Q Youmade a request to him in writing, didn't
25 A Pardon? 25 you, for an estimate as to the volume of waste?
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1 A Mm-hmm. 1 that a jurisdiclional delineation has not been done. So
2 Q And the dates when it was placed? 2 i{'s — it could potentially be waters of the U.S. under
3 A Yes. 3 federal jurisdiction. It could not.
4 Q And you don't know whether you ever got a 4 Q We just don't know as we sit here today?
5  response to that? 5 A Right. [ think it would take a forensic
€ A ldon't belisve he ever fully answered the 6  jurisdictional determination to determine that.
7  question. 7 Q Okay. if indeed there is no assertion of
8 Q So the information that is in finding No. 2 8  United States jurisdiction, then is the dumping of fill
9  comes from the city of Poway and from Sean Marsden, | 9  material in the ephemeral stream area waste?
i0  correct? 10 A Yes.
11 A Yes. 11 Q Why?
12 Q It says discharged waste. Now, when yousay |12 A Because if's still a2 waters of the siate, and
13 ‘“waste," what is your understanding of the meaningof |13 the fill material could be considered a waste that's
14  thatterm as an enforcement officer for the RWQCB? 14  been discharged into the siream.
15 A Thatis the discharge of the dredge and fill 15 Q And you're basing that on definitiens in the
16  material - well, the fill material that Dr. Morilz 16  California water code of waste and waters of the state?
17  imported onto his site and placed in the sfream. 17 A I'm basing it on my experience in doing 401
18 Q What do you base the conclusion that fill 18  water quality cerlifications and the issuance of waste
19  malerial is waste? 19  discharge requirements for dredge or fill material into
20 MR. LEON: Calls for a legal conclusion. 20 waters that are nol considered by the federal government
21 BY MR. SIMPSON: 21 1o be waters of the United States.
22 Q You can answer. 22 Q  Setling aside 401 cerlification, if we're not
23 A | base it on that the discharge of fill 23 going to have jurisdiction of the United Stales, then
24  material into watlers of the state either requires a 401 24 aren't we just determining whether we have waste in
25  certification or waste discharge requirements, and thus {25  waters of the state?
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1 fill or material placed info a waters of the U.S. is — 1 A Yes,
2 can be considered waste. 2 Q And that's the question of whether there are
3 Q  Now, if - you're an enforcement officer for 3 going to be WDRs issued under 132607
4  1he RWQCB. And one of the things thal you do is see 4q A That would be an option, yes.
5  whether the facts violate the law, correct? 5 Q s it your understanding that the terms waste
6 A Yes. 6  and walers of the state are defined by water code
7 Q That's part of your job duly, right? 7  seclion 130507
g A Yes. 8 A | believe so, yes.
9 Q  Now, as far as this stream is concemed, have 9 Q  And that's what you mention here on ltem
10 you heard from any source that the United States is 10 No. 4, among other things, of Exhibit 607
11 asserding jurisdiction over thal parlicular ephemeral 1t A Yes.
12 stream? 12 Q 13050E of the California water code doesn't
13 A No. 13 aclually include ephemeral sireams as a water course by
14 Q Have you determined from any source whether 14  definition, does ii?
15 the United States can assert jurisdiction over that 15 A 1don'thave itin front of me, so | can't
16  ephemeral stream in light of existing precedent? 16  telf you exaclly what it says.
17 A It's possible. 17 Q  Idon't have an extra copy to give you, but
18 Q Have you heard that the United States is not 18  the definition | see in the code section in front of me,
19 going to assert any jurisdiclion over ihat ephemeral 19 13050 says, quote, waters of the slates, unquote, means
20  stream? 20 any surface water or ground water including saline
21 A I have heard from Robert Smith at the Army 21 walers within the boundaries of the stale. Is that your
22 Corps of Engineers, and (hrough you, that the Army Corps |22 understanding of the phrase of the definition of waters
23 Is overwhelmed right now, and | believe in an e-mail 23 of the state?
24 thatl can't remember the date of, they offered for your 24 A Yes.
25  client lo accept Jurisdiction, which you declined, but 25 Q  And how is it that this ephemeral siream that
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1 s dry most of the {ime Is water of the state? 1 BY MR. SIMPSON:
2 A Well, they used to be considered waters of 2 Q  What did he say about that?
3 the U.S., and waters of the U.S. Is a subset of waters 3 A hbelieve | sawthe — | did see the original
4 ofthe state. The definilion provided in Porter-Cologne 4 stream bed alteration agreement application that he
5  of walers of the stale paints a very broad brush, and it 5  provided to fish and game where he wrote that there was
6  would include ephemeral drainages. & a storm waler component to his project.
7 Q How do you know that? 7 Q Do you know whal lhe watershed is that
8 MR. LEON: I'm going fo object. Thisis 8  involves the properly where this ephemeral slream is
9  gelting way too deep into legal issues. He testified g that crosses my client’s property? Bad question, but -
10  thaf he has a B.S. in environmental sciences. He has 10 A it's hydrologic sub area 906.20,
11  nottestified that he has a law degree or that he ever 11 Q And you find that in the cleanup and
12 wenttlo law school. The line of question you're 12  abatement order?
13 pursuing clearly is something that could be addressed in 13 A Yes.
14 briefing to the board, and it seems fike a waste of time 14 Q ltem No. 87
15  to meve much mere with this. 15 A Yes.
16 BY MR. SIMPSON: 16 Q Whalis the receiving body of water, if any?
17 Q Letme ask you this, then, | don't normaily 17 A Receiving body of water of what?
18  justgo on, butwell taken. |s there a polflcy to -- 18 Q  Of this ephemeral drainage.
19 within the regional beard {0 profect ephemeral slreams 19 A Itis an unnamed tributary to Rattlesnake
20 as though they were flowing streams using the 13304 20 Creek.
21 cleanup and abatement order process or the WDR process? (21 Q And Raltlesnake Creek leads to what?
22 A Could you repeat the question? 22 A Ratllesnake Creek comes down and meets Poway
23 Q  Is there a policy at the regional board fo 23 Creek
24 protect ephemeral streams even though they aren't 24 G And then Poway Creek goes where?
25  typically flowing? 25 A To Los Penasquitos Creek.
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1 A Could you define what you mean by a policy? 1 Q  And then that goes where?
2 Q Have you been trained or told that part of 2 A Ultimately to Los Penasquitos Lagoon,
3 your job duly is to protect ephemeral streams that don't 3 Q  And the ocean?
4 typically flow by issuing or requiring the issuance of 4 A And then o the ocean.
5  WDRs or cleanup and abatement orders? 5 Q Isthe Los Penasquitos Lagoon the receiving
6 A Yes 6  body of water of this ephemerat stream uitimately?
7 Q Do you know what that policy orf procedure is 7 A Yes,
8  that you've been told about? 8 Q Do you believe that the condition of the
9 A You asked if | was trained. And when | began 9 Moritz property as it exists today significantly affects
10 doing 401 certifications, | absolutely was told and 10 the water quality of that or any receiving body of
11  tralned to protect ephemeral drainages, and protect -- 11 water?
12 and protect them like | would any other perenniat or iz A Yes.
13 Intermittent stream. i3 Q Inwhat way?
14 Q  And how about waste? Have you been trained |14 A It's part of the watershed. If's a head
15 that fill that somebody actually wants to have on their 15  water stream. Itis imbued with the same beneficial
16  property, the regional board will view as waste? 1¢  uses that Ratilesnake Creek has, and it's part of the
17 A Ifit's placed in a stream, yes. 17  watershed. In awatershed context, every ephemeral
18 Q  Did Bill Maritz ever communicate with you his 18  slream, every tributary, every larger order stream
19 belief that he needed to put the pipe on his property in 19 contributes fo the healih, ulimately, of the watershed
20 order to protect his properly from storm water flows 20 and the receiving waters in the watershed.
21 from upstream? 21 Q Can you quantify the effect that the Moritz
22 A Thatls one of the -- 22 property has on the receiving body of water?
23 MR. LEON: Just answer the question. 23 A No.
24 THE WITNESS: Yes. 24 Q Do you know how large the watershed is that
25 i 25  ultimately leads 1o thal receiving body of water?
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1 A No. 1 acres?
2 Q Anyidea of the -- well, of the 2 A ldonot
3 characleristics of the water quality as it leaves or 3 Q Could you identify any aquatic species that
4  enters the Moritz property currently? 4  are dependent on the native sediment on the Moritz
5 A No. 5  property?
[ Q So what you've told me is 1hat you believe, 6 A Aguatic species?
7 based on your own belief, that this property nonetheless 7 Q Yes.
8 affects the receiving body of waler significantly? 8 A No.
9 MR. LEON: Objection. Assumes — rather, 9 Q I'mlooking at item No. 5 here, and one of
10 mischaracterizes the witness's testimony. Itis 10  the concerns that's been raised is the threatened
11 argumentative. 11 habitat for aguatic species that are dependent en native
12 THE WITNESS: The ephemeral stream thatonce 12 sedimentation and vegetation. Do you see that?
13 existed on Dr. Moritz's property contributes over -- at 13 A Where do you see that?
14  one time when it was there contributed to water quality 14 Q Last sentence of Paragraph 5.
15  within the whole watershed. 15 A If could be aquatic macroinvertebrates that
16 BYMR. SIMPSON: 16  are brought down from the watershed above, above into
17 Q Do you believe if something were to be done 17 the stream.
18  on his property that it would even be measurable at the 18 Q Anyidea of any spacies that were ever there?
19  receiving body of water? 19 A Of aquatic species?
20 A That's a vague question, because | don't -- 20 Q  Yes.
21 you're not specifying what it is we're measuring or what 21 A Neo.
22 constituent or what water quality parameter you're 22 Q That's just specutation?
23 wanting to measure. 23 A It's more of a general observation about
24 Q Well, one of the things that the Regional 24 effects of the discharge of waste on water bodies.
25  Water Quality Control Board is concerned about is 25 Q Not based on this particular instance,
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1 turbidity, right? 1 correct?
2 A In some cases, yes. 2 A The stream - the ephemeral stream is given
3 Q s that a concern about turbidity here? 3 beneficial uses through our basin plan of warm --
4 A Turbidity could be a concern, yes, 4 which - how do | say this. There's the potential ihat
5 Q How about color or sediment load? 5  there could be aquatic species in there at the {ime that
[ A Yes, 6 water is flawing through the stream and that it could
7 Q Do you believe that the effect of the Morilz 7 help move {hese down to a more permanent - not
8  property could actually be measured at the receiving 8  permanent, but a larger stream. There's the possibility
9 body of water? 9  thal aquatic specles can travel through the ephemeral
10 MR. LEON. Vague as o which receiving body 10 stream.
11 of water. 11 Q Soit's speculative here, bul based on
12 THE WITNESS: Yes, it could be measured. 12 experience at other ephemeral streams?
13 BY MR. SIMPSON; 13 A It's speculative here because | don't know
14 Q Howwould you do that? 14  except from photegraphs what the stream looked like
15 A With a turbidity meter, if turbidity is the 15  prior to Dr. Moritz's activities.
16 constituent you're talking about. If it was a pH, maybe i6 Q  'm going to hand you what i've marked as
17  apH meter, 17  Exhibit 62, And that's -- well, you {ell me what that
18 Q Anyidea of the sensitivily of such meters? 18  is. And I'm sorry. | only have one copy at the moment.
19 A It depends on how much money you're willting 19 A Thatl's an application for a stream bed
20 {o spend on the meter. 20 alteration agreement from the California Depariment of
21 Q Do you know how many thousands of acres are {21 Fish and Game.
22 inthe watershed that leads to the lagoon that you've 22 {Exhibit 62 marked)
23 meniioned? 23 BY MR. SIMPSON;
24 A No. 24 Q  Now, the last four or five pages there, or
25 Q Do you know whether that exceeds a thousand {25  toward the end anyway, have a written description of
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1 events. Do you see that? 1 Deparlment of Fish and Game had approved the requested
2 A Yes. 2 stream bed alteration?
3 Q In earlier testimony you testified about some 3 A Yes.
4  of the things that Dr. Moritz mentioned to you. s that 4 Q What did she say?
5 notification of siream bed alteration a document he 5 A She had not,
6  provided you with? 6 Q Did she say anything about what her next
7 A He did not provide me with this. 7 steps were as far as that plan is concemed?
8 Q Did Kelly Fisher provide you with that? 8 A That exhibit right there you're referring fo?
9 A At some point, yes. 9 Q Yes.
10 Q WWas that in approximately June or July of 10 A | believe that she wrote back to him saying
11 20087 11 it was incomplete.
12 A Yes. 12 Q Do you know whether thal was before or after
13 Q Was it after the cleanup and abatement order, 13 the pipe wentin?
14  original cleanup and abatement order had issued? 14 A Pwould say it was after,
i5 A | don'trecall. 15 Q Do you know whether there was some event that
16 Q The date of that is May 14, 2008. Do you see 16 led Bill Moritz {0 believe that he had the aulhority to
17 that? 17 putthe pipe in?
18 A Yes, 18 A 1knowwhat his and your written evidence
19 Q Isit your understanding from having spoken 19 states, he -- | know lhe circumstances surrounding, yes.
20 with Kelly Fisher or from having communicated with Bill 29 Q Is it your understanding that he believed
21 Morilz that he attempted to get permission to alter the 2t when told fo fix the problem on May 19, 2008, that he
22 stream bed? 22 understeod that to mean that he must get that pipe in?
23 A | am aware that he submitted this application 23 A That's what he has alleged. | can't know
24 with a check o the fish -- Depariment of Fish and Game. 24  what was in his mind.
25 Q Did he ever tell you that he understood he 25 Q item No. 8 of Exhibit 60, if | could refer
82 84
1 had the permission of the Department of Fish and Game to 1 youback to that cleanup and abatement order that's
2 proceed with the work? 2 proposed, that mentions violation of discharge
3 A 1believe in some of his or Mr. Sandrock's 3 prohibitions in the waler quality control plan for the
4 written and your wiitten comespondence that yes, he has 4  basin plan. Do you see that?
5  stated that he thought he had permission. 5 A Yes,
6 Q Have you seen notification of stream bed 6 Q And as | understand it, you've got three
7 alterations in the past? 7 concerns, and those are items numbered 1, 3 and 14 under
8 A Yes, 8  sectlon 87
9 Q Do they tend to look like Exhibit 62 or 9 A Yes.
10 something different? 10 Q I'mgolng fo hand you what has been marked as
11 A The form is simitar. | don't know if they've 11  Exhibit 63, which contains some highlighting to try to
iz changed it lately. But yeah, that's the form that 12 make this go a little bit more quickly.
13 people filt out when they want to obtain a slream bed 13 Cther than the highlighting, do you recognize
14  alteration agreement. 14  this as excerpts of the basin plan, and particularly
15 Q  When you've seen stream bed alleration 15  Chapter 3, Water Quality Objectives, of the basin plan?
16  agreemenis and notification of stream bed alterations, 16 A Yes.
17  have you — have they looked more delailed than you see 17 {Exhibit 83 marked)
18 in Exhibit 627 18 BY MR. SIMPSON:
12 A Some have. Some not. [t's dependent on the 19 Q  You'll note that this is not a complete copy
26 complexily of the project being proposed. 20  of that chapler, bul rather select pages.
21 Q How complex would you view this particular 21 A Mm-hmm.
22 stream bed alteration proposal to be as compared {o 22 Q s the chart that's about four or five pages
23 othersin general? 23 back, the chart for surface waler, water quality
24 A Notvery complex, 24 objectives, for my client's property?
25 Q  Did you talk to Kelly Fisher about whether 25 A Yes.
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1 Q And we know that because it's hydrological 1 A would say that the natural sediment load
2 unit basin No. 6.207? 2 that could have been taken from your client’s property,
3 A Cormect. 3 distibuled downstream, was removed when he encased the
4 Q Now, there are temporary exceedances thal are 4 stream -- well, when he diverted the drainage on his
5 allowed from these paricular numbers that are in the 5  property through a pipe. There's also the potential of
6  table, comect? 6  the sediment load going way over the nalural sediment
7 A Yes. Concenirations not to be exceeded more 7 load than existed in the slream prior fo impact due to
8  ihan 10 percent of the time during any one-year period. &  the amounts of fill that were imporied into the property
9 Q  Aswe sit here today, does the regional board 9 and the potential for them to erode and discharge into
10 have any evidence that there were any exceedances of any {10  downstream water bodies.
1t of lhese constituents of concern or these water quality 11 Q  As you sit here today, do you have any
12 objeclives, rather, at any time? 12 evidence thal that cccurred?
13 A Notthat | — not that | know of. 13 A Anecdotal evidence.
14 Q The next table in order, Table 3.3 of 14 Q  Fromwhom?
15  Exhibit 63, refers to ground water. Do you see that 15 A From the complaint issued by the city of
16  {able? 16 Poway.
17 A Yes. 17 Q Is the complaintissued by the city of Poway
18 Q Does the regional board have ground water 18  something that Danis Bechter gave to you?
12 concems as regards my client's property, oris it 19 A |believe Lisa Foster gave it to me.
20 surface water only? 20 Q Do you know one way or another whether those
21 A 1don't know. 21 arelrue, of do you accept them as true?
22 G How about you as an enforcement officer for 22 A lacceptihem as true.
23 the Regional Water Quality Contro! Board? Do you have 23 Q Have you ever seen Bill Meriiz's
24 concems about whether my client's properly is affecling 24 cross-complaint?
25  ground water? 25 A No.
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1 A I'm not sure where the water table resides on 1 QG Do you know today whether the site is
2 your client’s property. I'm not sure what kind of 2 stabilized as far as erosion control and sediment
3 aquifer, if any, or storage capacily is available 3 control is concemed?
4 undemeath the ground on your client's property. There 4 A From ihe photographs I've seen of the
5  Isapotential that the removal of the siream and 5 abatement work that was performed by the city of Poway,
6 placement of a pipe could potentially affect ground 6  sofar to date those BMPs seem to be preventing erosion
7 water recharge. 7 and discharge of sediment off-sile from your client’s
8 Q Aswe sit here today, does the regional board 8  property.
9 oryou, as ils enforcement officer, have any concems g Q Isityour understanding the city of Poway
10 about the effect of ground water given what's occurred 10 under that clean -- or under an abatement order --
11 on my client's properiy? 11 strike that.
12 A I don't know. 1z Is it your understanding that the city of
13 Q s there anyone at the regional board, to 13 Poway, under an abatement warrant, went in and installed
14 your knowledge, that knows more aboul the effects of my 14 some BMPs?
15 client and his property as far as it affecls waler 15 A Yes,
16 quality, other than you? 16 G  What did you understand they did?
17 A Polenlially. 17 MR, LEON: Excuse me. Before you get too
18 Q  Who knows more — de you think might know — 18 muchinto il, | just want to check things out about how
1%  who do you think might know more than you? 12 you're feeling.
2¢ A About water quality? 20 MR. SIMPSON: Lunchtime? Why don't we go
21 Q  Atmy client's site. 21 ahead and take a break.
22 A | don't know, 22 THE WITNESS: Yeah. | could use a break.
23 Q Do you or {he regional board have any 23 MS. FOSTER: How long are we going to take?
24  evidence as {o whether the sediment load was changed by {24 ['m hoping short so we can keep going.
25 any of my client's conduct? 25 THE WITNESS: A half hour?
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1 MR. SIMPSON: How about 45 minutes bacause, 1 e-mail address on our web site would be received.
2 practically speaking, it will be 45 minutes anyway. 2 Q Do you know one way or the other?
3 MR. LEON: it's 12:30 now, so back at 1:15. 3 A Hdom't
4 ook 4 Q I'mgoing to show you Exhibit 66.
5 (LUNCHEON RECESS) 5 MR. LECON: Was there a 657
6 R o 6 MS. FOSTER: The last one was 64.
7 ! MR. SIMPSON: I'm sorry.
8 EXAMINATION CONTINUED 8 Q What I'm handing you, then, Il mark as
9 BYMR. SIMPSON: % Exhibit 65. I'll take that back and use that one next.
10 Q  Sir, I'm going to hand you what is apparently 10 s what I've just handed you as Exhibit 65 the document
11 ane-mail, and it's from your file, Iticoks like 11 that you understood that Bill Moritz believed that he
12 Exhibit 64 is next. Do you see Exhibit 647 12 had sent earlier?
13 A Yes. 13 A Yes.
14 {Exhibit 64 marked) 14 (Exhibit 65 marked)
i5 BYMR. SIMPSON: 15  BY MR. SIMPSON:
16 Q And you recognize that as something from the 16 @ And this is an e-mail that discusses his
17 RWQCB file? 17  understanding that he had the authority to do contour
18 A Yes, 18  grading and landscape work?
19 Q  You know that because of the highlighter? 19 MR. LEON; Objection, Just a little
20 A Yes. 20 difficuity with respect to the document. You callit an
21 Q Is this something that you got or you saw 21 e-mail, but it looks like something other than an
22 before? 22 e-mail. Forexample, a Word document. Can you tellus
23 A Yes. I's an e-mail that | wrote, so I'm 23 whythatis? Ordo you have anything that you need to
24 familiar with it. 24 do to clarify the record on that?
25 Q Take a moment, if you would, and familiarize 25 MR, SIMPSON: Yeah.
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1 yourself withit. 've got questions about an e-mail 1 Q Letme hand you Exhibit 68, and maybe thal
2 that Bill Moritz sent or didn't send to regional board. 2 will help shed light on that.
3 A {Nods head.) 3 MR. LEON: Thank you.
4 Q  Are you aware of an Issue between — | want 4 (Exhibit 66 marked)
5 lo say between you and Bill Moritz as to whether he had 5 BY MR. SIMPSON:
&  sent Mike McCann an e-mail earier than this? 6 Q Take a moment, if you would, and look at 66
7 A | comesponded with Dr. Moritz regarding the 7 in conjunction with 65.
8  e-mail that he sent — he said he sent to a Mike at the 8 Have you had a moment to look —
2  regional board. ] A Yes.
10 Q Did you ever get to the botlom of that? 10 Q - at Exhibit 667
11 A | attempted to find cut if either of the 11 A Yes.
12 staff members named Mike at our regional board ever 12 Q Isityour understanding that he believed he
13 received the e-mail In question. 13 sentyou an e-mail that is -- the contents of which are
14 Q  And what did they say? 14  contained in Exhibit 657
i5 A Neither Mike McCann nor Michael Porter had 15 A Yes.
16 any recollection of ever receiving the e-mail. They 16 Q  And Exhibit 65, of course, is a Word document
17 both checked thelr e-mail accounts and showed no signof {17  but not an e-mail, but that's an aftachment that he had
18 i having been sent in the fime frame he said it was 18 sentloyou?
19  sent. 19 A Yes.
20 Q Do you guys have a fillering system that 20 Q Given that, is it your understanding that
21 filters out e-mails? 21 Bill Moritz believed that he had the authority to do
22 A ldon't know. 22 grading and landscaping on his properiy?
23 Q Do you know whether all e-mails that are sent 23 MR. LEON: I'm going to object that it calls
24 {0 you are always received? 24 for speculation about what Mr. Moritz's state of mind is
25 A lwould assume that e-mails sent through an 25  orwas at that time.
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1 THE WITNESS: Can you repeat the queslion, i Q Do you have any understanding as 1o whether
2 please? 2 those conditional waivers were created as a consequence
3 BY MR. SIMPSON: 3 of a directive from the governor?
4 Q s it your understanding that Bill Moritz 1 A Yes.
5  {old you that he had lhe authority of the city of Poway 5 Q  Isit your understanding that those
6  {o do contour grading and landscaping? 6  condilional waivers were crealed as part of the
K A That's what he stales in the letler. 7 govemor's effort to suspend certain requiremnents for
8 Q He also mentions that he believed that he had 8  obtaining WDRSs, for example?
% the authoerily of a Department of Fish and Game warden to 9 A Could you repeat the question, please?
1¢  proceed with the work that he was doing as of the time 10 MR. SIMPSON: Could you do me that favor?
11 {he game warden appeared on his property, fight? 11 {Record read)
12 A That's what the letter seems 1o indicate. iz THE WITNESS: Yes.
13 Q Did you ever contact the Depariment of Fish 13 BY MR. SIMPSON:
14 and Game warden? 14 QG  I'm going to hand you Exhibit 67. On Page 3,
15 A No. 15 Mo. 13, is that the provision by which you believe the
16 G Whynot? 16  govemor suspended certain requirements regarding WDRs
17 A | didn't feel there was any need to. 17 temporarily as a result of the Wikch Creek fires?
18 G Would it make a difference o you if the 18 A {'t have to read the document o get context
19 Department of Fish and Game warden said that putting a 19  here.
20  pipe in the slream was okay? 20 {Exhibil 67 marked)
21 A No. 21 MR. LEON: Counsel, I'm golng to ask you a
22 Q  Why not? 22 guestion about this document. Obvlously it is what it
23 A Because in my estimation the warden woufd be 23 s, and ii probably will lead to a line of questioning
24 wrong. 24 thatis more along ihe lines of legal interpretation,
25 Q And you'd still have walter code provisions to 25  perhaps policy Interpretation. Obviously, Mr. Means
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1 enforce? 1 will have Information factually with respect to what the
2 A There would still be permils required from 2 office's protocol may have dei}'eloped as a result of the
3 the Depariment of Fish and Games, from the city of Poway, 3 issuance of this document, but he probably wont have a
4 and potentially the Army Corps of Engineers, 4 ot of Information, I'm just guessing, wilh respect to
5 Q tikewise, if Bill Morilz had the authorily 5  what transpired with respect to Implementation from the
6  for performing the work that he had through the city of 6  governor's office on down to manager.
7 Poway, would you betieve that that still dogsn't relieve 7 MR. SIMPSON; 1 don1 have a lol of questions
8 him of obligations under the water code to the Regional 8  inhere, but we can see where it goes.
9 Water Quality Conlrof Board? 9 MR. LEON: All right,
10 A Yes, 10 THE WITNESS: Could you repeat the question
11 Q Because he sfill needs the permits that he 11 again?
12 would get through you guys, correct? 12 BY MR. SIMPSON:
13 A Righl. 13 Q Is it your understanding that paragraph 13 is
14 Q  And that would include WDRs? 14 the paragraph by which the governor suspended
15 A WDRs or Seclion 401 water quality 15  requirements for such things as WDRs?
16 cortification. 16 A | don’t know.
i7 Q  Was there a time after the Wilch Creek fires L7 Q  I'm going to show you two documents,
18  that the requirements for obtaining WDRs were suspended? 18  Exhibit 688, which is an Executive Officer Summary Report
19 A Not exaclly. 19  dated November 14, 2007, and Exhibit 69, whichis a
20 Q  What do you mean by "not exactly™? 20  Tentative Resolution R8-2007-0211, Take a moment, if
21 A 1know that the regional board, afler the 21 youwould, to familiarize yourself with those. And I'm
22 Wilch Creek fires, Issued conditional walvers for fire 22 going to ask some fairly broad questions.
23 related activities that may result in a discharge to 23 (Exhibits 68 and 69 marked)
24 isolated waters of the state, not under the jurisdiction 24 BY MR. SIMPSON:
25  of the federal government. 25 Q Have you had the chance 1o look at those?
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1 A Yes. 1 waiver under this resolution.
2 Q Do you believe that Exhibits 68 and 69 are 2 BY MR. SIMPSON:
3 the San Diego Regional Water Quality Conlrol Board's 3 Q  Why do you believe that he would not qualify?
4 method of implementing conditional waivers because of 4 A Il youlook at Page 6 of Exhibit 69, 6C,
5  the Witch Creek fires? 5  which states "specific actions necessary to prevent or
6 A Yes. 6  mitigate an emergency. This does not include tong-term
7 Q  And Ml hand you Exhibits 70 and 71 as well. 7  projects undertaken for the purpose of preventing or
8  Exhibit 70 — 8  mitigating a situation that has a low probability of
9 THE REPORTER: Excuse me. Could we go off 9 oceurrence in the short-term." In my mind, though I'm
10 the record? 10 ot alawyer, the project that Dr. Moritz did on his
11 {Off the record) 11 project -
i2 {Exhibils 70 and 71 marked) 12 MS. FOSTER: Fm sorry. Ours are not
13 BY MR, SIMPSON: 13 numbered, and so 'm nol sure which document we're
14 Q  Back on the record, 14 talking about here.
15 Sir, Exhibits 70 and 71, are they part of the i5 THE WITNESS: That would be tentative
16 effort of the regional board 10 implernent the direclive 16 resolution R9-2007-0211.
17  of the govemor o suspend WDRs? 17 MR. LEON: And what part are you reading
18 A | am not familiar with document 71, but | 18  from?
19  have no reason to believe {hat they aren't. 19 THE WITNESS: I'm reading from the general
20 Q Do you have any understanding about the 20 conditions, Section A, 6C.
21 period during which WDRs were suspended because of the |21 MR. LEON: Thank you.
22 Wilch Creek fires? 22 BYMR. SIMPSON;
23 A Yes. 23 Q You're talking about CEQA requirements,
24 Q  What period? 24 right?
25 A During — as soon as the govemor issued his 25 A No. I'mialking about the fact that
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1 emergency proclamation, which was -- or executive order, 1 Dr. Moritz was doing improvements to his property that
2 No. 67. 2 he stated so himself, he wanted to, you know, landscape,
3 Q And for how long were they suspended? 3 make — gel belter use out of his property. And in my
4 A ldon'tknow. 4 mind, that's a long-term project that doesn't allow for
5 Q  Did you ever falk wilh Bill Moritz about the 5  aconditional waiver.
6  possibility of his property not having WDRs issued 6 Q  Dr. Morilz told you, didn't he, that after
7  because his property might qualify for the temporary 7 ihe Witch Creek fires there was a delugs of water that
8 allowance {o not have WDRs? 8 came down from a dam that broke or was taken down
9 A No. % upgradient?
19 G Do you believe that his property did not ever 10 A Yes,
11 qualify for the relief that the governor proposed? 11 G And he told you that trash and sediment and
12 MR. LEON: Objection. Calls for speculation, 12 debris ended up on his property?
13 Calls for a lagal conclusion. Relevance is an issue 13 A Ne.
14 with respect to whether this applies, and a foundation 14 Q Did he tell you that because of the winter
15  hasn't been laid with respect to whether Mr, Morilz ever 15 rains following the Witch Creek fires that he had
16  applied for a conditional permit under these 16 sedimentation and also scouring on his property and deep
17  resolutions. 17 gullies and eroslon rails on his properiy?
18 THE WITNESS: 1 am not familiar with the 18 A Yes.
19 resolulion contained or discussed in Exhibit 71. { have 19 G Now, gefling back to Exhibit 67, Item No. 13,
20 read through once the resolution contained in 20  one of the things that the govemor was requiring to be
21 Exhibit 89, And my reading of the tentative resolulion 21  suspended was regulations, rules, statutes pertaining to
22 number R8-2007-0211, | would -- it would be my opinion 22 restoration, right?
23 that he would most likely not be eligible for inclusion 23 A | don't know.
24 under this conditional waiver. And | know of no olher 24 Q  Well, it says that restoralion and related
25  project that was done like Dr. Moritz's that obtained a 25  aclivilies, lhose statutes, niles are suspended, right?
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1 A Are you talking about No. 13? 1 A Yes,

2 Q Yes. 2 {Exhibit 72 marked)

3 MR. EEON: Objection. Argumentative. The 3 BYMR. SIMPSON:

4  document speaks for itself. | don't know what purpose 4 Q  And did you read that in approximately the

5 it serves to have the witness repeat what the document 5 June 2008 time frame?

6  says. 6 A Yes.

7 THE WHTNESS: It does say that statutes, 7 MS. FOSTER: Can | see what document we are

8  rules, regulations and the requirements are suspended 8 talking about?

2  only to the extent necessary for expediting the removal 2 MR. SIMPSON: Yeah. Sorry. | don't have an
10  and cleanup of debris from the disaster and for 10 exira copyof it. 1think you've seen it before as
11 implementing any restoration plan. 11 well
12 BY MR. SIMPSON: 12 MS. FOSTER: Probably so.

13 Q  And related activities, right? 13  BYMR. SIMPSON;
14 A | didn't see that. 14 Q 8, I'm going to hand you what I've marked
15 Q Have you had any experience in 13269, water 15  as Exhibit 73. Do you recognize that as Page 4 hyphen
16  code waivers from waste discharge requiremesnts? 16 24 of the basin plan?
17 A No. 17 A Yes.
18 Q Have you ever heard of temporary waivers 18 {Exhibit 73 marked)
19 being given to folks to whom WDRs might apply under 19  BYMR. SIMPSON:
20 132697 20 Q The--
21 A No. 21 A | can't say for sure that this is the exact
22 Q Do you know that that possibility exists? 22 page from the basin plan. 1t looks like it.
23 A Perhaps. I'm not sure. I'm not familiar 23 Q The highlighted portion there talks about
24 with the text of 13269, 24  selection of appropriate enforcement action. Do you see
25 Q Are you generally familiar with the 25 that?
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1 possibllity of conditional -- or of waivers, temporary 1 A Yes.

2 waivers, from the WDRs? 2 Q Were you trained to go through these steps

3 A Yes. 3 before selecling an appropriate enforcement action?

4 Q  You're familiar with that belng 13269. You 4 A | have had enforcement training, but not on

5 just aren't familiar with the content of it as you sit 5 this parlicular page of the basin plan.

6  here today? 6 Q Now the basin plan Is what the regionat board

9 A Right. 7 of San Piego prescribes for itself, right?

8 Q You've seen the city of Poway's complaint, 8 A Yes. We developed it.

9 right? 9 Q  And staff proposes orders such as cleanup and
10 A lhave seen a copy of it, yes. | believe 10  abatement orders such as the cleanup and abatement order
11 it's part of the evidence package that | supplied you. 11 2008-152 in this cass, right?

12 Q And s it your understanding that the city of 12 A Yes,

13 Poway was demanding of the Moritzes that they restore 13 Q  And then, if adopted, it becomes an order of
14 the siream just like the RWQCB? 14  the board.

15 A lwould have to refresh my memory looking at 15 A Yes,

16  the cemplaint. 16 Q  Has the regiona! board, looking at the first

17 Q What Is your understanding of what they are 17 bullet point, gathered evidence concerning the degree of
18  requiring of the Moritzes? 18  water quality impalrment involving the Moritz property?
19 A | would say their requirements are in line 13 A To the extent that it's necessary for this

20 with regional board's requirements; to remove the fill, 20 action, yes.

21 remove the pipe, and restore the stream in fine with the 21 Q  Whatls the evidence concerning the degree of
22 restoration plan that Dr, Maritz developed. 22 water qualify impairment?

23 Q  Sir, 'm going to hand you Exhibit 72. Do 23 A There once was a stream on the site that had
24 you recognize that as something that Dr. Moritz provided }24  beneficial uses and hydrological and ecological

25  toyou? 25 functions, and it's gone.
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1 Q Okay. And how about the threat to the public 1 double negative.

2 heailh, including the degree of toxicity of the 2 A Oh. Excuse me. That's correct.

3 discharge? What evidence does it have in those regards? 3 Q Thatwas a bad question.

4  Same thing? 4 How about the next hullet point? Does the

5 A Inthe case of discharge fill 1o a stream, | 5  regional board have any evidence as to the financial

6  have no evidence — I do not know where Dr. Morilz got 6  resources of Bill Moritz or Lori Moritz?

7 his fill from, so [ don't know whether or not it's toxic 7 A Yes.

8  fillor not. I have no way to know that. 8 Q  What evidence does it have?

9 Q No evidence as you sit here today, comrect? 9 A What you have provided. And in regards to
10 A [have noidea of there being a toxicity 10 cosls of creating the plan, though I've never seen an
11 threat from his discharge, other than the potential of 11 invoice that proves that, | have - and you've also
12 sediment to be discharged into the neighboring streams 12 stated what you expect, or a bid you've had for what it
13 and to detimentally affect organisms living in that 13 would cost to do the actual restoration work.

14 siream by smothering them. 14 Q 8o at this point it has no actual doltar
15 Q How about the next bullet point, past history 15  costs for what it would cost to do the work, correct?
16  ofdischarge violations? As far as RWQCB is concemed, (16 MR. LEON: Asked and answered.
17 have there been any RWQCS violations by De. Moritzan |17 THE WITNESS: | believe you stated ina
18 any point before the June, or was it July, cleanup and 18  letter or correspondence to me that it would cost
19  abatement order and 20087 19 $60,000.
20 A I'munaware of any. 20 BY MR. SIMPSON:
21 Q How about other discharge violalions? 21 Q Do you have any information about the
22 A Notthat | know of, 2z financial ability of the Moritzes?
23 Q  How aboul the next item, the degree of 23 A 1donot.
24 cooperation or recalcitrance shown by the discharger? 24 Q Does anybody within the RWQCB?
25  What are your lhoughls on thal? Has Dr. Moritz been 25 A | don'tknow.
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1 cooperative or uncooperative? 1 MR. LEON: That was an incomplete question.

2 A In my opinion, Dr. Morilz was cooperative up 2 Are we assuming that the question was does anybody

3 toa point, and then he ceased being cooperative, 3 within the water board have information about

4 Q Atwhat point did he caase cooperation? 4 Dr, Monilz's economic ability? Financial resources?

5 A Atthe point where he actually - after the 5 BYMR. SIMPSON:

6 plan -- he complied with the original cleanup and 6 Q Financlal rescurces. Thal's a befler

7  abatement order o the point of creating a restoration 7 question. Are you aware of whether anybody in the RWQCB

8  plan to restore the creek, he provided us a time line 8  has information about the financial resources of Bill or

9 with which he sald he could comply with the order and 9 Lord Moritz and their abllity 1o do the work that was
10 restore the creek, and at the point where he needed to 10 contemptated In the stream restoration plan?

11 start the work, he backed away from his slated - it A The only financial information -- coutd you

12 willingness to comply wilh the order. And he also did 12 repeat the question one more time, please?

13 not follow through with getting grading permits from the 13 Q  Are you aware of whether anybody in the RWQCB
14 ity or obtaining a stream bed alteralion agreement. 14  has any information about BIl! or Lori Moritz's

15 Though he did submit an application, he's never 15 financlal resources and ability to implement lhe stream
16  concluded the process of gelting a stream bed alteration [16  resloration work?

17  agreement. 17 A Other than myself, no.

18 Q Do you know why he cooperaled to a point and ig Q  There's ancther item here, a couple bullet

19  then ceased? 19 points down -- well, | guess the next bultet point on

20 A Tonly know what you provided me in your 20 Exhibit 73 is whether the circumstances leading lo the
21 letter to me as for his reasons. 21 poncompliance have been corrected. As of today, has
22 Q You haven't contacted him to ask him why he's 22 there been a parlial correction of some of the

23 not proceeding with the plan, right? 23 circumstances leading to the cleanup and abatement
24 A No, 24 order?

25 Q And by that you mean that's correct? 1had a 25 A No.
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1 Q Letme show you if | can Exhibit 74. Maybe 1 Q Well, you made a determination of what was
2 1hat's not the best picture, De you recognize the 2 going on on the Moritz's properly without having been
3 Moritz property wilhin Exhibit 747 3 there, right?
4 A Yes, 4 A No.
5 {Exhibit 74 marked) 5 MR. LEON: Argumentative.
6 BYMR. SIMPSON: 6  BY MR. SIMPSON:
7 Q Do you see an arrangement of siraw rolls that 7 Q Canyou iel based on locking at this
8  were called out in the stream restoration plan? 8  photograph whether there's grading that's occurring?
9 A | see straw watlles. | can't tell you if 9 A | can see - it looks like socmeone's driven a
16 they are deployed in the way that the siream restoration 10 tractor around there, yes.
11 plan envisioned. 11 Q Infact, you can see the iractor on there,
12 Q Do you have that figure in front of you, the 12 right?
13 slream restoration plan we went over earlier? 13 A Hdon't know if it's grading or tilling the
14 MR, LEON; Exhibit 1. 14 soil or what the activity is. 1don't know when this
15 THE WITNESS: Yes. 15  picture was taken. | could guess.
16 BY MR. SIMPSON: 16 Q This was aclually, for reference,
17 Q Can you lock at one and then the other and 17 December 30, 2008.
18  compare and get an idea whether the straw rolls shownin |18 Can you tell, based on what you can see, that
19 Exhibil 74 are deployed in the way called for in 19  that looks like -- sirike that.
20  Exhibit 617 20 You didn't go out there in December, did you?
21 A Simifar, but not exactiy. 21 A No.
22 Q Do you know why they might have deparlures in 22 Q Are you aware of whether there's an ephemeral
23 some locations? 23 siream that intersecls the -- or whether lthere are two
24 MR. LEON: Calls for speculation. 24 connecting ephemeral streams on the neighbor's property
25 THE WITNESS: No. 25  upgradient of the Morilz property?
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1 BY MR. SIMPSON: 1 A Historically, yes.
2 Q Incidentally, on Exhibit 74, where is the 2 Q Where did it historically go? The area where
3 dividing line on the property, if you know? 3 the hay bales are shown on Exhibit 74?
4 A 1would assume that in the middle of the 4 A Inthat direction generally, ves.
5  diagram where the Visqusen channel starts is 5 QDo you see those are hay bales and not siraw
6  approximately where the property line is. &  rolls, right?
7 Q  And then off to the right there is a barn, 7 A No, | did not.
g8  and behind the barn is a cut slope with some more 8 Q Cantteli?
9 Visqueen plastic. Do you see that? 9 A Can'ttell.
10 A Yes. 10 Q Are hay bales an approved BMP?
11 Q s it your belief that the property line r1 A Approved by who?
12 basically extends between those two end lines of 12 Q Calirans.
13 Visqueen plastic? 13 A s kind of -- | don't know if Caltrans's
14 A Roughly, yes. 14 BMP manual still includes hay bales.
15 Q The property to the north appears lo be 15 Q Have you ever seen the condition of flowing
16  undergoing grading activities. Do you see that? 16  water on the neighboring property during a rain event?
17 A Yes, 17 A No.
18 Q s that something for which there is a 18 Q  The pipe that was the -- or is the subject of
19 permit? 19 your tentative cleanup and abatement order, are you
20 A | don't know. 20 aware of whetier that's been partly removed?
21 Q Based on what you see here, are you critical }21 A Yes.
22 ofthe work that -- as an enforcement officer, thal's 22 Q Do you know where it has been partly removed?
23 being performed on the neighboring property? 23 A No.
24 A | haver't been on the neighboring property, 24 Q Do you know what footage of its total length
25  sol can't really make a determination. 25  was removed?




Christopher Means January 16, 2009
113 115

1 A No. 1 BYMR. SIMPSON.
2 Q  Are you aware of whether it has been disabled 2 Q Is that something that looked different when
3 sothalit does not capfure water and {ransmit water 3 you first saw it in August of 20087
4 through it? 4 A Yes.
S A Yes. 5 Q s this an improvement as far as the BMPs are
6 Q Ithas? 6  concerned?
7 A 1believe so. 7 A Yes.
8 Q Ifthe pipe is disabled, do you believe that 8 Q  And this is before the city of Poway came
9 there's slill a need to remove it? 9 onto the site, right?

10 " A That depends on the exact location of the 10 A ldontknow,

11 pipe. If the pipe is in an area that was once waters of 11 Q Do you know the date that the city of Poway

12 the state, yes, | believe the pipe should be removed. 12 performed its abatement work?

13 Q And you're referring to the historic stream 13 A | don't remember the exact date.

14 bed? 14 Q December?

15 A Yes. I'mreferring to the -- to the best of 15 A Yes,

16  myknowledge, the topography that exisled in 2005. 16 Q  Another thing that was mentioned while at the

17 Q I'm going to show you Exhibit 75, which is 17 site In August was concerns about vectors within the

18  basically an overhead shot of the properiy, also taken {18  drain that was depicted in the earlier exhibit. And the

19 on December 30 of 2008. Do you see the straw rolls 19 suggestion was that the bottom of the drain be filled

20 there? 20 wilh concrete so that there would not be standing water.

21 A On Dr. Moritz's property? 21 Do you recall that conversation?

22 @  Yes. 22 A Yes

23 A Yes. 23 Q Exhibit 77 shows concrete having been poured

24 {Exhibit 756 marked) 24 in order to resolve that problem, right?

25 25 MR. LEON: Canwe go off the record for a
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1 BYMR. SIMPSON: 1 moment, please?
2 Q Do you believe that the siraw rolls are 2 MR. SIMPSON: Sure.
3 essentially in the location of the historic stream bed? 3 {Discussion off the record)
4 A | believe no. 4 MR. SIMPSON; 77 is the poured bottom in the
5 Q  Where do you believe the historic stream bed 5  drain, poured concrete bottom, for vector control.
6  was in relation to any landmarks, such as the plastic 6 {Exhibit 77 marked)
7 creek or the straw rolls? 7 BY MR. SIMPSON:
8 A bwould venture to guess that the Visqueen 8 Q  Exhibit 78 shows a couple of straw rolls near
9  channel most closely represents where the original 9  the barn. Do you see thal?

10  stream bed was. 10 A Yes.

i1 Q Do you know one way or the other? 11 (Exhibit 78 marked)

12 A Iwould need to superimpose other historical 12  BY MR, SIMPSON;

13 photographs on that to determine that. 13 Q And those weren't there in August, were they?

14 Q  One of the things that you are requiring in 14 A No.

15  the cleanup and abatement order is the protectionofa {15 Q In August you counted three straw rolis?

16  drain; is that right? 16 A Correch.

17 A That's not exactly right, no. It's not 17 Q Going back to the earlier exhibit, 75, what

18 explicitly called out in the cleanup and abatement 18 is the number of straw rolls that you can see in that

19 order. 19 photograph?

20 Q  Since | showed you the piclure, we might as 20 MR. LEON: Could you hold up 75 so we can

21 welllook atit. Are you aware if — are you familiar 21 figure out which cne it is?

22 with the drain that's shown in Exhibit 767 22 THE WITNESS: {Indicating.)

23 A Yes. 23 MR. LEON: Thanks.

24 (Exhibit 76 marked) 24 THE WITNESS: Al this elevation, it's

25 M 25 difficult for me io see whether or not straw - to
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1 discern between gravel bags and straw rolls as opposed 1 Q Does the RWQCB have any enforcement aulhority
2 to the channel and outside of the channel. If | count 2 for preventing this kind of thing?
3 the number of fiber rolls | see outside of the channel, 3 MR. LEON: Lacks foundation with respect to
4 lcount10. 4 whether that property owner obtained applicable permits
S BYMR. SIMPSON: 5  from the city or the regional board or anybody else.
6 Q  And how many were called for in the stream 6 THE WITNESS: Yeah. I'm not familiar with
7 restoration plan, Exhibit 617 7 the property and I'm not familiar if he's received any
8 A 10, 41--12. §  pemmits or the — from these aerials, 1 can't tell if
9 Q Do you know whether straw rolls were removed 9  any damage has been done to walers of the slate. i'm
10 as part of the abatement efforts by the city of Poway? 10 not familiar with the property, so | can't say.
11 A ldonot. 11 BY MR. SIMPSON:
12 Q Do you recognize Sean Marsden's properly in 12 Q Do you see the ephemeral stream that
13 Exhibit 797 13 Dr. Morilz is being criticized for having changed in
14 A That seems to look like his property. 14  Exhibils 81 and 827
15 {Exhibit 79 marked) 15 A 1see where | imagine it could be an
16  BYMR. SIMPSON: 16  ephemeral stream running through the project.
17 Q Did you see any sediment that you believed 17 Q Do you knowwhere the ephemeral stream runs
18 had come from the Moritz property on his property as 18 onthat neighboring property to the norh?
19  of --well, at any time? 19 A |would say it generally bisects the property
20 A No. 20 in half and renning in a norlh to south
21 Q I'mgoing to hand you Exhibit 81 and 21 Q Toward the hay bales?
22 Exhibit 82, which Is actually a portion of Exhibit 81, 22 A Probably right in the palh of the hay bales.
23 butblown up. Can you tell from looking at those two 23 Q  Are you aware of whelher It aclually cuts
24 photographs what's going on there? 24 over toward the horse comals shown in Exhibits 81 and
25 A No. 25 827
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1 (Exhibits 81 and 82 marked} 1 A | know that from looking at historical aeral
2 BYMR. SIMPSON; 2 photographs, there is a siream thal runs about where the
3 Q Can you tell from looking at the tractor and 3 sand bales are, and there was another one that comes in
4 the soil in front of and behind the tractor whether that 4 from the south side and is now culveried under Crocker
5  fractor, as of the time of this pholograph on 5  Road. Where they joined up, | can't exactly say. But
6 December 30, 2008, was grading or tilling? 6  two sireams joined up into one on Dr. Moritz's properly.
7 A lcan't tellif it's moving orif it's just 7 Q  Let me show you Exhibit 83. Do you recognize
8  parked there. 8  that as the culvert that goes beneath Crocker Road, to
9 Q Can you tell from the seils around it whether 9 ihe nelghboring property to the north?
10 {he ground looks as though it was freshly disturbed? 10 A thaven't walked up there and looked at it,
11 A Itlocks tike it's been filled. 11 solcan'say.
12 Q Do you see any vegetation growing on the 12 (Exhibit 83 marked})
13 areas that were tilled? 13 BY MR. SIMPSCN:
14 A Yes. 14 Q Never been up there?
i5 Q Where do you see vegetation growing on the 15 A No. I've never been on the adjoining
16 tilled areas? 16 properly, except when you and | looked at the inlet pipe
17 A Thetrees. The column of trees and the other 17 porlion.
18 iree. 18 Q You've been on Crocker Road, right?
19 Q  Not on the actual furrows of ihe tilled 19 A Yes,
20  areas, though. 20 Q  Likewise, with Exbibit 84 -- whoops. Let me
21 A Yes. 21 trade you. That's a view the ofher direction of that
22 Q  From the standpoint of lhe RWQCB, does the {22 same culveit and ephemeral stream. Can you tell one way
23 RWQCB care one way or another about this type of 23 or the olher whether that's the ephemeral siream that
24 activity? 24 leads to the Morilz property?
25 A What do you mean, care? 25 A [can tell from these photos.




Christopher Means January 16, 2009
121 123
1 (Exhibit 84 marked) 1 recall that?
2 BYMR. SIMPSOM: 2 A Yes.
3 Q  Now, assuming that it is the ephemeral stream 3 Q Does Exhibit 86 show the straw rolls having
4 that leads to the Morilz propeity, are you aware of 4 been staked through the center, which was a concern of
5  having or intending to have Dr. Meritz reslore his 5  yours as far as them previously -- that's a bad
6 siream fo something tha! locks like whal's shown in & question. Your concern was that the straw rolls were
7 Exhibit 847 7  staked on the sides rather than through the center,
8 A [can'say. 8  right?
9 G Whynot? 9 A No.
10 A Because this Is not the contours that | 10 {Exhibit 86 marked)
11 have-- | don't know about the adjacent properiy. | 11 BYMR. SIMPSON:
12 know what the city of Poway has provided tepography maps 12 Q  What concern did you have about the straw
13 as towhat Dr. Moritz's stream [ooks like. I'm 13 rolls?
14  concerned with this order, with Dr. Moritz's siream 14 A When | inspacted the site In August and
15  segment. ¥m not famifiar with the other site, so | 15  inspected the straw rolis, my concern was that the
16 cantsay. 16 stakes were not through the straw roll but to the side
17 Q  From the standpoint of storm water 17  of the straw roll, which, if there was a significant
18 management, are you critical of what you see in 18  rain event, could cause the sediment control BMP to
19 Exhibits 84 and 82? 19 fail
20 A There's alot of disturbed soil there, and so 20 MS. FOSTER: Can we get clarification about
21 thereis a polential for sediment potentially to -- if 21 what exhibit we're looking at?
22 thatin factis an ephemeral stream I'm looking at in 22 {Discussion off the record)
23 84, yeah, there's -- | would love o see [t vegetated. 23 BYWMR. SIMPSON:
24 Q  So that it holds the selllement, keeps it 24 Q  And your answer was that your concern was the
25  from getting transported? 25  staking of the straw rolls on the side, and you wanted
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1 A Certainly. 1 1o have them siaked through the center?
2 Q I'm going to show you Exhibit 85, which shows 2 A There was — when you say staked through the
3 another view of the culvert beneath Crocker Road. Are 3 side, | think that's not descriplive. The stake was not
4 you ciitical of what you see there as far as the 4 inthe siraw roll at all. There was no way for it to
5  condition of the culveri? 5 hold it down like it's portrayed here in Exhibit 86.
6 A lcan't say. 6 Q I'm going 1o show you Exhibils 87 and 88.
7 {Exhibit 85 marked) 7 From a storm waler standpoint, what do you see depicted
8 BY MR. SIMPSON: 8 in these two exhibils, 87 and 887
9 Q it's okay, then, in your mind to have -- from 9 A | see water running down a road.
10  a storm water standpoint, to have a culvert thal's more 10 {Exhibits 87 and 88 marked)
11 than haif full of debris? 11 BY MR, SIMPSON:
12 A Depends on how it functions during a rain 12 Q [I'Hrepresent to you both of these pholos
13 event 13 are taken of Crocker Road in the vicinity of the culvert
14 Q You belisve that the city of Poway has 14  beneath Crocker Road. Do you see the storm waler
15  obligated itself in the cily of Poway's JURMP to clear 15  overiopping the road in Exhibit 877
16  drains, including the drain lhat you see depicted in 16 A lcan'treally tell what I'm seeing in 87.
17  Exhibit 85, so that it transmits water freely? 17 Q How about 88?7 Do you see sediment franspor,
18 A Could you repeat the question, please? 18  evidence of sediment transport in Exhibit 887
19 Q  Are you aware of whether the city of Poway 19 A Yes,
20 obligated itself in its JURMP to clear drains, including 20 Q Do you know whether (hat water flows
21 the drain shows in Exhibit 857 21 ultimately through the neighboring property to the north
22 A Fm not aware, 22 of the Moritz property and then onto the Morilz
23 Q  When you were out at the property in August 23 property?
24 of 2008, one of the concerns you raised was the slaking |24 A 1don'know.
25 of straw rolls and the trenching of straw rolls. Do you 25 Q Allsight. I'm going to show you Exhibit 89.
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1 Do you see the ephemeéral siream in Exhibit 89 on the 1 ambiguous.
2 npeighboring property in this photograph? 2 BY MR. SIMPSON:
3 A | see water flowing. | can't tell you — 3 G Do you believe that the discharge can be
4 it's too blurry to tell whether that's a stream. I'm 4 cleaned up?
5 notsure. 5 A Yes.
6 {Exhibit 89 marked) 6 Q Is that if the stream restoration plan, for
7  BY MR. SIMPSON: 7 example, is implemented?
8 Q Can'ttell whether that's water there? 8 A Yes.
9 A | seewater, 9 Q How about the need for taking immediale
10 Q Canyoutell— 10 aclion? Do you believe that the site right now has been
11 A Butin the overall context of the picture, | 11 stabilized sufficient to protect water quality and
12 can'ttell you if the water flowing in that thing is 12 downstream property from immediate threats from winter
13 flowing through an ephemeral stream. 13 storms?
i4 Q Can you tell whether sediment is being 14 A idon'tknow.
15 transported onto the Moritz properly based on that 15 Q What would you need to know in order to
16  photograph? : 16  answer that?
17 A Yes. 17 A |would need to know the intensity of
18 Q  Now, Dr. Moritz contemplated using a pipe to 18 potential storms that may occur in the future.
19  contain the water, such as the water shown in 19 Q Have you talked to Danis Bechter about the
20 Exhibit 89, right? 20 measuring that he implemented for the city of Poway?
21 A Yes. 21 A Yes.
22 Q Do you believe that had he pursued the 22 Q  What has he said about thelr capability of
23 appropriate permits, he could have had success in 23 handling storm events?
24 getting approval for that pipe? 24 A Up to this point, they seem to be working.
25 A ldomtknow. 25 Q How are the storm events that we've had since
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1 Q  What steps do you believe he would have 1 they've been implemented as compared to your larger
2 needed to go through in order to get {o that point where 2 storm events?
3 he would have had approvai? 3 A | haven't seen the rainfall data, so 1 can't
4 A He would have needed to go through either 4 make a judgment on that,
5  obtaining a 401 water qualily certification, performing 5 Q Do you believe that the -- or do you have any
6  CEQA, gelting grading permits, stream bed alteration &  information one way or another about whether these, for
7  agreements, and potentially 2 404 permit from the Army 7 example, would meet the 100-year, 24-hour storm event
8  Corps of Engineers. 8  criteria?
9 Q Do you believe that CEQA was required in this 9 A ldontknow.
10 circumstance? 10 Q Do you believe that Dr. Moritz or Lori Moritz
il A Yes. 11  obtained any economic benefit because of the
12 Q  Why? 12 noncompliance that you helieve has occurred?
13 A Because i believe the project as Dr. Moritz 13 A Yes.
14  completed it constilutes a project under CEQA as defined {14 Q  What economic benefit do you believe that
15 by CEQA. 15 theyve realized?
16 Q Do you belleve that he would not have 16 A 1believe they realized benefit by not
17 qualified for any exemptions? 17  obtaining the appropriate permits, by not going through
18 A ldonot. Let me state | do not believe he 18  the CEQA process, by not hiring a civil engineer to
19 would have qualified for a categorical exemplion under 19 properly think the project through and implement it
20 CEQA. 20 appropriately.
21 Q  Getling back 1o exhibit - | believe it's 73, 21 Q Before this case have you ever had any
22 doyou believe the bullet point whether the discharge 22 working relationship with Danis Bechter?
23 canbe cleaned up has been addressed by the regional 23 A No.
24 board, fourth to the bottom? 24 @ How abouf with David Rizzuto of the city of
25 MR. LEON: The guestion is vague and 25  Poway?
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1 A No. 1 DECLARATION UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY
2 Q How about Donald Sharp of the city of Poway? 2
3 A No. 3 |, CHRISTOPHER MEANS, do hereby certify under
4 Q How aboul Sam Tadros of the city of Poway, 4 penalty of perjury that { have read the foregoing
5  now at the county? 5  transcript of my deposilion taken January 18, 2009; that
6 A No. 6 | have made such comections as appear noted herein, in
7 Q How about Jim Lyon? T ink, initialed by me; that my testimony as contained
8 A No. 8  herein, as comecled, is true and comect.
g Q How about socially? Did you ever have any 9 DATED this day of .
10 involvement with any of those guys socially? 10 20 . at , California.
11 A No. 11
12 Could | request a quick break. 1z
13 MR. SIMPSON: Sure. 13
14 {Off the record) 14 CHRISTOPHER MEANS
15 MR. SIMPSON: | propose that we have 15
16  Mr. Means sign the transcript under the penalty of 16
17 perjury, waiving the requirement of any notary; thathe |17
18  do so within 30 days of presentation of the transcript 18
19  to him; that the original be sent directly to Mr. Means 19
20 here at 9174 Sky Park Court — 20
21 THE WITNESS: Suite 100. 21
2z MR. SIMPSON: — Suite 100, San Diego. 22
23 921217 23
24 THE WITNESS: 92123. 24
25 MR, SIMPSON: And then you'll be given a 25
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1 plece of paper that you can write down any page and line 1 REPORTER'S CERTIFICATION
2 number where you have a change lo an answer, and 2
3 indicate what the change Is. 3 |, Tamara L. Espino, Cerlified Shorthand
4 And then V'd like to have a self-addressed 4 Reporier, in and for lhe State of California, do hereby
5  stamp envelope in there to me. Il maintain custody of 5  certify:
6 the original, make it available lo counsel on request. 6
7 And we talked off the record, Counsel Jorge Leon and |, 7 Thal the wilness named in the foregolng
&  aboutl having a rough transcript prepared as soon as 8 deposition was, before the commencement of the
9  praclicable without killing off the court reporter. 9  deposition, duly administered an cath in accordance with
10  That will become part of the record, with the 10  Code of Civil Procedure Seclion 2084; that the testimony
11 understanding thai it will be supplemented wilh the 11 and praceedings were reported stencgraphically by me and
12 cerified copy when we receive a certified copy. Okay? 12 later transcribed into computer-aided Iranscription
13 MR. LEON: Okay. What that does Is allows 13 under my direction; that the foregoing is a true record
14  Doug lo go ahead and submit his response to our 14 of the testimony and proceedings taken at that time.
15  submiltal, which is based on the deadline issued by the 15
16  notice of hearing using the draft of the transcript. 16 IN WITNESS WHEREQF, | have subscribed my name
17  That information will be subject to being updated and 17 this 21si day of January, 2009,
18  corrected, if necessary, based on the final version of ig
19 the franscript that will be put out after his deadline. 13
20 THE WITNESS: Okay. 20
21 MR. SIMPSON: Okay? 21
22 MR. LEON: Sounds good. 22 Tamara L. Espino, CSR No. 9494
23 MR. SIMPSON: Allright. Thank you. You've 23
24 been very patient. 24
25 (The deposition concluded at 2:42 p.m.) 25
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